CPST Application

Name of Organization

City of Lancaster

Contact Name & Title

Flip Hutfles/City Administrator

Mailing Address

P.O, Box 1149, Lancaster, SC 29720

Phone Number

(803) 289-1453

Email Address



shutfles(@lancastercitysc.com

Website

www.lancastercitysc.com

Organizational Type

Governmental

Amount Requested

$1,500,000

Total Cost of Project

$2,373,084

Location of Project



Downtown Lancaster

Expected Timeframe

18 Months

Description of Proposal

Petal Park will be a new signature public park in Downtown Lancaster that will become a
major destination capable of attracting people of all ages, incomes, and abilities to Downtown
Lancaster. This park will be a catalyst for much-needed investment in Downtown. Petal Park
will feature numerous high-quality amenities including: (a) A crescent-shaped splash pad with
flush-mounted pop-jets, which would enable the space to act as a plaza when not in operation.
(b) A passive lawn for picnicking and seating during special events, such as outdoor concerts
and movies. (¢) Movable café seating, including tables, chairs, and umbrellas. (d) On-street
parking that would be utilized as a food truck zone during festivals and other special events. (e)
Stormwater gardens wrapped by low walls that provide seating. (f) A wide variety of public
art, including murals, sculptures, and banners. The idea of Petal Park was generated from the
City's Downtown Revitalization Plan after numerous citizen meetings and a community survey
completed by almost 1,800 people. The one idea that had strong public support was a park in
Downtown that had a splash pad. The installation of a Downtown splash has been a City
Council priority for well over five years.

Description of Capital Need

Due to the total cost of over $2.3 million dollars the City is requesting support from the Capital
Project Sales Tax to help fund the construction as all residents of the County and visitors will
enjoy Petal Park. The City is planning to hiring an engineer to develop construction plans by



the fall of 2020 with design plan being completed by early 2021, which will allow the City to
begin construction in late spring 2021.

Description of Benefit

Parks are an essential local government function that provides countless value to citizens. Petal
Park will be a place for people to improve their mood and reinvigorate themselves. A study
from the University of Chicago showed that individuals who have access to greener areas have
significant and long-lasting improvements in mental health, improved mood, reduce stress, and
enhance sense of wellness. The ability of Petal Park to significantly improve the physical and
mental health of the residents is a cornerstone by which the City and County as a whole to
improve the quality of life. Another benefit of building Petal Park is the increased property
value of surrounding properties and making Downtown living an attractive option for the
younger entrepreneurial generations that is so important for the revitalization of the
community. There will also be an economic impact as Petal Park attract residents and tourists
bringing customers to local stores and restaurants. As a community signature piece, Petal Park
will be a marketing tool to attract business and industries looking to locate in Lancaster
County. For me the greatest benefit for the larger community is Petal Park becoming the glue
that brings and holds the community together. Petal Park will provide social equity as it
ensures that all citizens have access and opportunity to benefit from the park and associated
programs. Petal Park will provide the space for neighbors to interact with each other and meet
new people, which in turns allows people to develop a sense of community. Petal Park will
also help tackle the growing problem of social isolation. Petal Park is intentionally design to
become a "third place" where all can exchange ideas, build relationships, and most importantly
have a good time.

Ongoing Costs

Yes



Description of Costs

There will be annual maintenance cost (mowing, trimming, picking up litter, etc.) of
approximately $15,000.

Source of Funding

The committed source of funding will be the City of Lancaster. The City will add the
maintenance cost to our existing recurring park maintenance fund

Government Assistance Funding

Yes

Amount/sources of other funding

The City of Lancaster will be contributing funding for the acquisition of property,
environmental study engineering, construction observation, project administration,
construction, and contingencies/cost overrun: Property Acquisition: $50,000 Environmental
Study: $12,767 Engineering: $194,000 Construction Observation: $35,000 Project
Administration: $15,000 Construction: $296,877 Contingencies/Cost Overrun: $269,532
TOTAL: $873,084



Itemized budget of you proposal

https://s3.amazonaws.com/260129¢1-3e0b-4614-a4a6-
€2986d88cH64/attachments%2FC0O20011000136220511%2FKnrehP64T4WF9fygKyS7 Petal

+Park+Budget.xlsx

Copy of an annual audit for your organization performed by a Certified Public
Accountant (CPA)

https://s3.amazonaws.com/260129¢1-3e0b-4614-a4a6-
€2986d88c664/attachments%2FCO20011000136220511%2F78mIHO5PTuinlFrgN94x_2019-

City-of-Lancaster-CAFR-F.pdf

Proof of an engineer, architect, or other third party project consultant’s involvement in
project scope and cost estimation.

https://s3.amazonaws.com/260129¢c1-3e0b-4614-a4a6-
€2986d88c664/attachments%2FC0O2001100013622051 1%2FZ88QFMIRRaSmiAFsUd2T MK

SK+Opiniont+of+Probable+Cost.pdf

Additional Attachments (i.e. PowerPoint, pdf, etc.)



https://s3.amazonaws.com/260129c1-3e0b-4614-a4a6-
€2986d88c664/attachments%2FCO20011000136220511%2F9fAW4z6rSxgDhESepc2w Petal
+Park+Excerpt+From+Lancaster+Downtown+Revitalization+Plan.pdf




The following attachments MUST be submitted with your application. If not, your
application will not be considered.

a. An itemized budget for your proposal.

b. Copy of an annual audit for your organization performed by a certified public
accountant (CPA)

c. Proof of an engineer, architect, or other third party project consultant's involvement in
project scope and cost estimation.

All applicants will be invited to present their proposals to the Commission. You will be
contacted by staff following your submission to schedule a time during an upcoming
meeting. Please also attach any additional handouts you would like them to have during
this review session. ANY HANDOUTS MUST BE ATTACHED WITH YOUR
APPLICATION.

| hereby certify that | am an authorized signatory for the applicant organization and
that this organization does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, age, sex,
religion, sexual orientation, physical disability, veteran status, or national origin,
and that all funds that may be received by applicant organization from the County of
Lancaster will be solely used for the purposes set forth in this application and will
comply with all laws and statutes.

et "CAles" et ‘
| St it Placrtos 03/21/2020

Signature Date



PETAL PARK BUDGET

Soft Costs Amount
Property Acquisition 550,000
Enivronmental Study $12,676
Engineering $194,000
Construction Observation $35,000
Project Administration 515,000
Construction Costs Quanity
Pedestrian Concrete Pavement 855 s.f $6,840
Seat Walls 198 I.f $59,400
Stone Roadway 111 I.f. $12,765
Stone Curb 480 |.f, S48,000
Natural Boulders 10 $50,000
Wood Seating Boards 111 I.f. $33,300
Swing Benches with Shade Strucutres 4 $60,000
String Lighting 500 L.f. $17,500
Ornamental 14' Pole Lights 3 $21,000
Pedestrian Pole Lights 20 $100,000
Site Clearing 13,500 s.f. $5,000
Site Preparation 13,500 s.f. $5,000
Splashpad 1 $350,000
Brick Paver 300 $7,500
Natural Stone Paver 7927 s.f. $594,525
Movable Café Seating (Chairs, Table, & Umbrella) 6 $45,000
Movable Adirondack Chairs 6 54,200
Movable Ottoman 2 S850
6' Ipe & Steel Backed Bench 4 $10,260
Trash Receptacles 4 $8,000
Bike Racks 10 56,000
Lit Bollard 5 $7,500.00
Artistic Bollard 5 $10,000.00
Large Plant Pots 3 51,500
Primary Park ID il $5,500
Downtown Wayfinding Kiosk 1 $5,500
Wayfinding & Regulatory Signage 1 $5,000
Pedestrian Light Pole Banners 6 $150
Public Art Allowance $50,000
Irrigation System Allowance $20,000
Scarify & Til Subgrade 7878 s.f. $1.575
Turfgrass Soils 33 cy. 51,980
Tree Pit Soils 2cy. 5160
Planting Soils 193 c.y. $15,440
Stormwater Basin Soils 84 c.y. $6,720
Grass Seed 2,708 s.f. $1,516
Large Deciduoud Tree 20 $24,000
Ornamental Shrubs 3,470 s.f. $121,450



Stormwater Shrubs
Refillable Water Bags
Trench Drains & Underground Piping Allowance

Contingencies

TOTAL

1,507 s.f. $52,745
20 $1,000
$20,000

$269,532

$2,373,084
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LANCASTER

THE RED ROSE CITY

CITY HALL 216 SOUTH CATAWBA STREET P.0.BOX 1149 LANCASTER, S.C.29721-1149 803-286-8414
www. lancastercitysc.com

November 15, 2019

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of the City of Lancaster:

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish a complete set of financial
statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and
audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified
public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual
financial report of the City of Lancaster (the “City”) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all
the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management of the City has established a comprehensive internal control
framework that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse
and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City's financial statements
in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits,
the City's comprehensive framewaork of internal controls have been designed to provide
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this
financial report is complete and reliable in all material aspects.

The City of Lancaster's financial statements have been audited by Blair, Bohle” & Whitsitt, CPA’s,
PLLC, a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded,
based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that
the City’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of
the financial section of this report.



GAAP requires that management provide narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

The City of Lancaster was founded by settlers from Lancaster, Pennsylvania and was ariginally
known as Barnettsville when the first courthouse was erected in 1795. In 1802, an application
was made for a charter for the village of Lancaster. A court dispute over the original plat was not
resolved until 1824. In December 1830, by Act of the South Carolina Legislature, the Town of
Lancaster was incorporated. The Town of Lancaster was re-charted in 1898 and as the City of
Lancaster in 1967.

The City operates under the council farm of government. Policy making and legislative authority
are vested in a governing council consisting of the mayor and six other members. The governing
council is responsible, among ather things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget,
appointing committees, and hiring the City Administrator. The City Administrator is responsible
for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City Council, for overseeing the day-to-day
aperations of the City, and other duties as assigned by City Council. The council is elected on a
non-partisan basis. The mayor is elected at large and council members are elected by district
and serve four-year staggered terms.

The City provides a full range of services including: police and fire protection, the construction
and maintenance of streets and other infrastructure; parks and leisure/cultural activities; sanitation
services; water and sewer services; and building, inspection, planning and zoning services.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City's financial planning and control. All
departments of the City are required to submit requests for appropriation to the City Administrator
in the spring of each year. The City Administrator and Finance Director use these requests as
the beginning point in the development of a proposed budget. The City Administrator then
presents this proposed budget to City Council for review. The council is required to hold a public
hearing on the proposed budget and to adopt a final budget no later than June 30th, the close of
the City's fiscal year. The appropriated budget is prepared by fund and department. Budgetary
control (that is the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is
maintained by the City Administrator at the object class level and may be amended as necessary
during the fiscal year. City Council is informed of budgetary expenditures in relation to
appropriations manthly in the form of a budget to actual revenue and expenditure report which is
posted to the City's website upon review by council.

il



Factors Affecting Financial Condition

Local economy. The City of Lancaster's and Lancaster County's industrial base has changed
from textiles to a diverse array of industries and a number of global corporations. The County’s
unemployment rate hit a low of 3.3% in November of 2018 and settled back at 4.1% as of June
30, 2019; the same as the June 2018 unemployment rate. The City of Lancaster and Lancaster
County work closely together to bring jobs to the area for citizens of the City.

Long-term financial planning. The City strives to position itself to weather all types of financial
conditions without adversely affecting the services provided to its citizens. The City continually
evaluates its long range financial planning tools, such as the capital improvement plan (CIP), for
ways to better use these tools in conjunction with long range strategic planning to maintain and
improve both the City's strong financial position and the level of services provided to its citizens.

The City’s planning and needs evaluation process, identified essential projects and initiatives to
be implemented over the course of several years. Through such planning and evaluation, the City
has created a structured approach to meeting challenges, effecting change, and achieving goals
on a multi-year basis with funding incorporated into the operating, special revenue and capital
improvement budgets. Initiatives include downtown redevelopment; community enrichment;
cultural arts and other quality of life opportunities; and continued investment in public
infrastructure. Funding for these endeavors, which have long-term fiscal implications, come from
a variety of sources including grants, Hospitality tax revenues, Community Development Block
Grant funds, and General Fund revenues.

The City's combined water and wastewater system is a regulated enterprise that requires
extensive fiscal resources for long-term viability to serve the demands of the Lancaster area. The
system continues to face increasing operating and capital expenses related to its collection
system. In response to these and challenges, and an EPA Consent order issued in 2015, the City
performed a comprehensive study of the operating, capital, and long-term debt service
requirements to determine revenue sufficiency for these needs. The analysis revealed that rates
for the combined water and wastewater system should be revised to meet current and future
financial requirements of the system. City Council approved incorporating a monthly infrastructure
fee of 2.00 effective July 1, 2017. Additionally, the rates are evaluated annually during the budget
process and adjusted accordingly to ensure available funding for future capital improvements and
debt service requirements.

. Cash management policies and practices. Cash available for investing during the year was
invested in interest-bearing public funds bank accounts and the State of South Carolina Local
Government Investment Pool. The South Carolina Local Government Investment Pool is a pool
of funds belonging to participating local governments which is managed by the State Treasurer in
obligations of the United States and its agencies and repurchase agreements collateralized by
securities of the U.S. Government or its agencies.

The investment goal of the City is to maintain adequate cash reserves to meet current obligations
and to invest in those legal securities that maximize earning and protect principal. While the
current market climate has increased the earnings the City is receiving from its investments, the



City will continue to monitor performance of its investment strategies to confirm acceptable
earnings levels while still providing adequate cash flow and protecting principal while staying in
compliance with the guidelines of the South Carolina Code of Laws, Section 6-5-10.

Risk management. Risk management activities are coordinated and managed within the Human
Resources Department; specifically by the Risk Safety Manager. Risk management efforts of the
departments are designed to minimize the loss of the City's human, physical, and financial
resources through appropriate planning, training, case management, and the provision of
adequate insurance coverage.

The City maintains its insurance for tort liability, property, automobile, fleet, machinery, and crime
with the South Carolina Municipal Insurance and Risk Financing Fund (SCMIRF). Workers'
compensation is maintained through the South Carolina Municipal Insurance Trust (SCMIT) fund.
Both SCMIRF and SCMIT funds are self-insured pools with other municipalities of South Caralina.
These programs are sponsored by and coordinated through the Municipal Assaciation of South

Carolina (MASC).

Major initiatives. During Fiscal year 2019, the City completed more than $400,000 in
improvements to the City Hall building; including roof replacement, remodeling, carpeting and
painting. In accordance with the City's General Fund Balance Policy, Fiscal Year 2018
Unassigned fund balances (carry-over funds) were expended to complete the building
improvements.

Per the 2014 Order of Consent agreement entered into with the Environmental Pro Agency (EPA),
capital improvements for the sewer system with estimated costs to be between $14 million and
$17 million were identified and approved by US EPA, SCDHEC, City staff, and a team of
consulting engineers. A number of funding sources, including several grants and State Revolving
Fund (SRF) loans, were incorporated into a financial plan developed by the City and approved by
City Council. Accordingly, those identified improvement projects to repair and improve the
collection system continued throughout the fiscal year with more than $11 million in improvements
substantially completed as of June 30, 2019.

Projected revenues of the City's sewer system combined with a number of SRF loans, including
loan principal forgiveness, as well as CDBG and SC Rural Infrastructure Authority grants provided
funding for the needed improvements.

Awards and Acknowledgements

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy
both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.

xi



The preparation of this repart would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated
services of the entire staff of the Finance Department along with the individual departments who
contributed information contained in this report. We would like to express our appreciation to all
members of the departments. Credit must also be given to the Mayor and City Council for their
support in maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the management of the City of
Lancaster.

\\Réé ectfully submitted,

\ -~
=\ =

ity Administrator

ana D. Pinkert, Finance Director
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‘ Charlotte, NC
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Blair. Bohlé & Whitsitt! 704-841-9800 Mair

Certified Public Accountants 704-841-9802 Fax
wynwbbwpllc.com

Independent Auditor's Report

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Lancaster, South Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lancaster, South
Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lancaster, South Carolina, as of June 30, 2019,
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows, thereof and the
respective budgetary comparisons for the General Fund and Hospitality Tax Fund for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 14, the South Carolina Retirement System's Schedule of the
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Contributions, on pages 76-77, the South Carolina
Police Officers Retirement System’'s Schedule of the Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and
Contributions on pages 78-79, the Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios on
page 80, and the Schedule of Contributions to OPEB on page 81, be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
ingquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the basic financial statements of the City of Lancaster. The introductory section, combining and
individual fund financial statement section, the other financial information section, and the statistical section,
and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,
as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statement section, the other financial information section, and the
schedule of federal expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining, and individual
fund financial statement section, the other financial information section, and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.
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The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 15,
2019 on our consideration of the City of Lancaster's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of the report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That reportis an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Lancaster’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Bloin Bt s uhitiit., e

Charlotte, North Carolina
November 15, 2019




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Lancaster, we offer readers of the City of Lancaster's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Lancaster
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. We encourage readers to read the information presented
here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the City’s financial
statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

s The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Lancaster exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $47,413,896
(net position).

o The government's total net position increased by $4,781,170, primarily due to capital
purchases associated with the City's EPA Consent Order compliance and other capital
purchases in the General, Gross Revenue and Solid Waste funds.

» For business-type activities, revenue was in excess of expense by $4,097,789 compared
to $5,355,174 at June 30, 2018.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Lancaster's governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $12,600,433, with a change of $1,506,527 in
fund balance primarily due to a $1,179,333 increase in the General Fund balance.
Approximately 21.9% of this total amount, or $2,755,793, is nonspendable, restricted, or
committed.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$7,941,406 or 67.2% of total budgeted General Fund expenditures ($11,827,234) for the
upcoming fiscal year.

» The City of Lancaster’s total debt increased by $1,695,358 during the current fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to City of Lancaster's basic
financial statements. The City's basic financial statements consist of three components; 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two different views of the City
through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the
basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance
the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of the City of Lancaster.




Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figure 1
Management'’s Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
Government-wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements (Exhibits A and B) in the basic financial statements are the Government-
wide Financial Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the City's
financial status.

The next statements (Exhibits C through 1) are the Fund Financial Statements. These
statements focus on the activities of the individual parts of the City's government. These
statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements. There are three parts to
the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary
comparison statements; and 3) the proprietary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements
explain in detail some of the data contained in the statements. After the notes, supplementary
information is provided to show details about the City’s individual funds. Budgetary information
required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.




Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad
overview of the City's finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector
business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the
City's financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the City’s net position and how it has changed. Net
position is the difference between the City's total assets and deferred outflows of resources and
total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the
City’s financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities;
2) business-type activities; and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most of
the City's basic services such as public safety, parks and recreation, and general administration.
Property taxes and state and federal grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-
type activities are those that the City charges customers to provide. These include water and
sewer as well as waste disposal services offered by the City of Lancaster. The City has no
component units.

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits A and B of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City's most significant activities.
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Lancaster, like all other
governmental entities in South Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance
(or non-compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the
City's budget ordinance. All of the funds of the City of Lancaster can be divided into two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as
governmental activities in the govermnment-wide financial statements. Most of the City’s basic
services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily
be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available
for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method
called modified accrual accounting which provides a short-term spending focus. As a result, the
governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him
or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the City's
programs. The relationship between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation
that is a part of the fund financial statements.

The City of Lancaster adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General
Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of
the City, the management of the City, and the decisions of the Council about which services to
provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified sources
to finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund
demonstrates how well the City complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City
succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary
comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same
format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The statement shows four

6




columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by City Council; 2) the final budget as amended by
City Council; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the
General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources
and charges.

Proprietary Funds — City of Lancaster has two different kinds of proprietary funds. Enterprise
Funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. City of Lancaster uses enterprise funds to account for its
water and sewer activity and for its waste disposal operations. These funds are the same as
those functions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities.

Fiduciary Funds — Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. The City of Lancaster has one fiduciary fund, which is an agency
fund.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the financial statements are on pages 28 - 74 of this report.

Other Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report includes certain supplementary information providing additional detail regarding the City of
Lancaster's various activities. This required supplementary information, financial and other
statistical schedules, can be found on pages 76 - 138 of this report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The City of Lancaster’s Net Position

Capital assets 12,868,073 13,364,434 34,413,163 31,926,561 47,281,236 45,290,995

Total assets 28,208,101 ¥ 27457192 45126,116 ¥ 38,782,114 73,334,217 66,239,306

Deferred outflow s of resources 2,423,821 2,419,728 - - 2,423,821 2,419,728

Long-term liabilities outstanding 14,616,472 15,544,674 8,920,935 4,458,978 23,537,407 20,003,852

Other liabilities 1,741,305 1,415,235 1,542,999 3,758,742 3,284,304 5,173,977

Total liabilities 16,357,777 16,959,909 10,463,934 8,217,720 26,821,711 25,177,629

Deferred inflow s of resources 1,522,431 848,678 - - 1,522,431 848,678

Net position:

Net investment in

capital assets 12,605,765 12,916,897 24,536,827 24,665,863 37,142,592 37,582,760

Restricted 1,252,798 900,821 3,444 394 2,623,715 4,697,192 3,524,536

Unrestricted (1,106,849) (1,749,385) 6,680,961 3,274,815 5,574,112 1,525,430

Total net position $12,751,714 $12,068,333 $34,662,182 $30,564,393 $47,413,896 $42 632,726




As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's
financial condition. The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Lancaster
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $47,413,896 as of June 30, 2019. The
City’s net position increased by $4,781,170 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. The increase
in net position is primarily the result of the City having to address capital costs associated with its
compliance with an EPA order of consent. These assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City of Lancaster's net investment in its capital assets is reported net of the
outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other
sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liguidate these liabilities. An additional portion
of the City of Lancaster's net position, $4,697,192, represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of $5,574,112 is
unrestricted.

Several particular aspects of the City's financial operations influenced the total unrestricted
governmental net position:

e In the General Fund, revenues exceeded Expenditures revenues by $1,179,333. This
occurred due to the higher than expected tax and business license collections, and less
than expected expenditures for personnel and insurance.

¢ [n the Hospitality Fund, revenues exceeded expenditures by $288,988 — which when
added to the $38,206 revenues over expenditures in the Southside Fund and E911 Fund
— resulted in excess revenues over expenditures for the other govemmental funds
amounting to $327,194. Revenues exceeded expenditures due to better than estimated
collections in hospitality tax revenue and less than expected for special contracts for the
year.

* In the Gross Revenue Fund, revenue exceeded expense by $2,455,899 before capital
grants. The increase in net position was the result of higher than expected collections.
Also, funds in the amount of $863,062 in the form of capital grants were received to help
offset costs associated with the City’s EPA Consent Order.

* In the Solid Waste Fund, revenue exceeded expense by $778,828. The increase in net
position was the result of higher than expected collections in garbage fees, containers and
transfer station revenues.




City of Lancaster Changes in Net position

Govemnmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2019 208 208 2018 201 208
Revenues:
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 606,381 $ 58,962 $ 10,906,893 $ 9266922 5 1518274 § 9785884
Operating grants and contributions 14,700 33,144 & 3 #,700 33,144
Capital grants and contributions - - 863,062 4,138,210 BB3,062 4138210
General revenues
Property taxes 5563 462 5,803,156 - - 5563462 5,803,156
Other taxes 5,083,754 5,166,607 - - 5,083,754 566607
Other 585 560 646,758 561257 175,024 116,87 821782
Total revenues 11863,857 2,568,627 2331212 13,580,156 24,195,069 25,748,783
Expenses:
General government 4,230,49 4487 906 - - 423049 4 487 906
P ublic safety 5322, 863 5,054,358 - - 5,322,83 5,054,358
Public Works 986,661 144,103 - - 986.661 144,03
Planning 265,707 250,374 - - 265,707 250,374
Parks and Playgrounds 67,948 160,326 - - 7,948 H0,326
Community Service 201192 150,249 - - 20192 150,249
Interest and fees 6656 9,181 - - 6556 9,81
Water and sewer - - 5,847,183 5908586 584718 5908556
Selid Waste - - 2,386,310 236466 2,386,310 236466
Total expenses 1180476 11,246,497 B233423 8224 982 11413899 B8,471479
Transfers = = % Z
Change in net position 583,381 922,180 4,097,789 5,355,174 47811770 6,277,304
Net positian, July 1 as onginally reported 12,068,333 0279341 30564393 25209219 42632726 37,488,560
Restatement - GASB #75 - (1133,138) - - = (1.133,88)
Net position, July 1 as restated 12,068,333 1146203 30,564,333 2520929 42,632,726 36,355,422
Net position, June 30 5 75171 $ 12068333 $ 34,662,182 $ 30564393 $ 47418896 S 42832726

Governmental Activities. Governmental activities increased the City's net position by $683,381
thereby contributing to the overall increase in net position for the City of Lancaster. This increase
was due to better than expected tax and business license collections for the fiscal year.

Business-Type Activities: Business-type activities increased the City of Lancaster’s net position
by $4,097,789. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

e The Gross Revenue Fund yielded $3,318,961 of the increase in business-type activity net
position. This was attributable to operating revenues exceeding operating expenses by
$2,443,922; capital grants contributions of $863,062; and non-operating revenue
(expense) totaling $11,977.




e The Solid Waste Fund increased overall change in business-type activity net position by
$778,828. This increase in net position is the result of operating revenues exceeding
operating expenses by $408,455 and other income (expense) totaling $370,373.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Lancaster uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City of Lancaster's governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information
is useful in assessing the City of Lancaster’s financing requirements. Specifically, fund balance
available for appropriation can be a useful measure of a government's net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Lancaster. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $7,941,406 while total fund balance
was $11,421,606. The Governing Body of the City of Lancaster has determined that the City
should maintain an unassigned fund balance of 40% to 60% of budgeted general fund
expenditures in case of unforeseen needs or opportunities, in addition to meeting the cash flow
needs of the City. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund
balance represents 77.8% of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents
111.9% of that same amount.

At June 30, 2019, the governmental funds of City of Lancaster reported a combined fund balance
of $12,600,433 a 13.6% increase over last year ($11,093,906).

Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the City revised the budget on two (2)
occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments
made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance once more
precise information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from
extemal sources, such as federal and state grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that
become necessary to maintain services. The following lists FY 18-19 budget amendments.

Ord No Eff Date i:gg;t Comment - Primary Reasons for Change

019-03 | 03-12-18 $404,800 | To fund additional capital expenditures for City Hall improvements and
employee appreciation; and to appropriate amounts for donations
received.

019-11 08-27-19 $1,480,050 | To fund increased utility rates; and to authorize increased allocations to
designated fund balance due to receipt of more than estimated charges
for service revenue.

In addition to the budget ordinances above, the operating budgets for the City’s operating funds
were amended once throughout the year with the authority given to the City Administrator by City
Council. These amendments were within funds and did not increase the overall budget of any

fund.
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Some of the significant differences in the General Fund between budgeted amounts and actual
amounts for FY 18-19 were as follows

e Actual revenue for local option sales tax exceeded budgeted amounts by 346,001 due to
better than projected collections.

e Actual interest revenue exceeded original revenue estimate amounts by $22,806 due to
increased interest rates and re-allocating interim funds.

e Police personnel services were $312,919 less than anticipated due to staffing shortage at
the police department.

e General government expense was $769,786 less than anticipated due to lower than
anticipated health insurances and information technology contracts and projects.

Proprietary Funds. The City of Lancaster's proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net position
of the Gross Revenue Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $4,597,920, and those for
the Solid Waste Fund amounted to $2,083,041. The total growth in net position for both funds
was $3,318,961 and $778,828, respectively. Other factors concerning the finances of these two
funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City of Lancaster's business-type
activities.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Lancaster's investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business—type activities as of June 30, 2019, totals $37,142,592 (net of accumulated depreciation
and related debt). These assets include buildings, roads and sidewalks, land, machinery and
equipment, park facilities, and vehicles.

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the following additions (there were no
significant demolitions or disposals):

« Capital asset additions for the City's governmental activities amounted to $618,852
including building improvements of $349,208; and vehicles and equipment of $269,644.

e Capital asset additions for business-type activities amounted to $4,089,633 including
infrastructure improvements $2,808,101; $756,727 for construction in progress additions
and $524,806 for equipment additions. The large increase for infrastructure is primarily
attributable to costs associated with EPA Consent Order compliance in three of the City's
sewer basins.

11




City of Lancaster’s Capital Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Land $ 4028453 § 4029253 § 366,054 § 366,054 $ 4394507 $ 4,395307
Buildings,systems
and improvements 4,799,037 4,736,270 32,031,710 21,969,361 36,830,747 26,705,631
Machinery and
equipment 1,119,853 1,424,539 1,258,672 1,264,467 2,378,525 2,689,006
Infrastructure 2,861,082 3,143,168 - - 2,861,092 3,143,168
Construction in
progress 59,638 31,204 756,727 8,326,679 816,365 8,357,883
Total $ 12,868,073 $ 13,364,434 $ 34413163 § 31926561 § 47,281,236 $ 45,290,995

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in note |I-A-3 of the Basic Financial
Statements.

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2019, the City of Lancaster had no bonded debt outstanding.
The remainder of the City's debt represents bonds secured solely by State Revolving Fund Loans
or capital lease obligations.

City of Lancaster’s Outstanding Debt
Revenue Bonds and State Revolving Loans

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Capital lease obligations  § 262,308 $ 447,537 § 1095926 § 1,528,434 § 1358234 3 1,975,971
Revolving loans - - 8,780,410 5,732,285 8,780,410 5,732,265
Total 3 262,308 § 447537 § 9876336 § 7,260,699 $ 10,138644 3 7,708,236

During the past fiscal year, the City's total debt increased by $2,430,408 (31.5%).

The City maintained a Standard and Poor's rating of AA- on its last outstanding general obligation
bonds. The City of Lancaster currently has no outstanding general obligation bonds or rated
publically held debt. Additional information regarding the City of Lancaster's long-term debt can
be found in note |I-B4 of the Basic Financial Statements.

Economic and Other Factors

The City of Lancaster (County Seat of Lancaster County) is located in northern South Carolina
some 32 miles south of Charlotte, NC. Population estimates for 2018 put the city's population at
9,175 (some 9.6% of Lancaster County’s estimated population of 95,380). The city’s 5.9 square
miles amounts to roughly 1% of the county’s 555 square mile area. The city was named after the
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House of Lancaster — one of two branches of The House of Plantagenet — involved in the 15th
century War of The Roses — hence the city’s nickname “Red Rose City".

During the fall of 2018 Medical University of South Carolina announced their intent to purchase
of Springs Memorial Hospital in early 2019; thereby changing the status to tax exempt. The facility
accounted for over 6% of the City’'s General Fund revenues in the form of property taxes. The
City adjusted the subsequent fiscal year budget to offset the negative economic impact of the loss
of tax dollars primarily through re-allocating expenditures to the appropriate corresponding
functions and eliminating some funds designated for reserves.

Top Ten Largest Lancaster Vicinity Employers
(Source: Lancaster County Economic Development Corp)

Employer Description # of Employees
Red Ventures Headquarters/Internet marketing 1925
Lancaster County School District County school system 1,800
Continental Tire Headquarters/Tire manufacturing 814
Movement Mortgage Call Center/Mortgage retailer 725
MUSC Health Lancaster Medical Center  Hospital 642
Cardinal Health Healthcare 621
Lancaster County County Government 535
Nutramax Manufacturing animal health products 483
Keer America Textiles - yam spinning mill 401
Oceana Gold/Haile Gold Mine Mining 396

Lancaster County's unemployment rate at June 2019 was 4.1%, unchanged from the June 2018
rate of 4.1%. This compares to statewide rates of 3.5% and a national rate of 3.7% for June 2019.

The following chart reflects the City of Lancaster retail businesses and sales from 2009 through
2018. (Source: SC Department of Revenue Annual Sales Reports)

Year Number of Businesses Retail Sales % Incr/Decr
2009 321 $370,836,792 (5.49%)
2010 417 $405,078,218 9.20%
2011 467 $410,870,492 1.41%
2012 467 $398,551,627 (3.00%)
2013 467 $384,935,753 (3.42%)
2014 469 $423,737,672 10.08%
2015 427 $483,380,622 12.34%
2016 431 $484,931,932 0.32%
2017 476 $531,297,936 9.56%
2018 506 $648,861,275 22.1%
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Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019

Governmental Activities: Given the improving economic conditions, and healthy fund balance
reserves, a property taxes decrease of 5.6 mills was approved for FY 18/19. In addition, operating
expenditures were scrutinized in ways to continue service levels at expected levels without
increasing costs. No cost of living adjustment or merit raises were made available for city
employees. Some new positions were created and grade increases, salary equalization and
longevity rate adjustments were made and off-set by a reduction in force through attrition, re-
allocating duties and restructuring departments.

Business — Type Activities: Service based fees for water, sewer and solid waste were adjusted
for FY 18/19 to correct structural imbalances due to increased operating cost, build city reserves
in the gross revenue and solid waste fund to meet future debt service obligations, and fund future
capital projects. No cost of living adjustment or merit raises were made available for city
employees however longevity rate adjustment were implemented.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the City’s finances for those with an interest in
this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for
additional information should be directed to the Director of Finance, City of Lancaster, PO Box
1149, Lancaster, SC 29721 or finance@lancastercitysc.com. Information about the City of
Lancaster is also available on the City’s website at https:/www.lancastercitysc.com/finance/
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Exhibit A

CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Taxes, net
Internal balances
Mortgages
Water and Sewer
Garbage and Trash
Roll-off containers
Intergovernmental
Other
Inventory
Cash and cash equivalents - committed assets
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Total non-current assets
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Pension deferrals
Other postemployment benefits deferrals
Total deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Customer deposits
Prepaid Performing Arts revenue
Current portion of long-term liabilities
Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Pension deferrals

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Drug fund
Tourism
Southside Housing
E911
Debt service
Unrestricted
Total net position

See notes to basic financial statements.

Business Total
Governmental Type Primary
Activities Activities Government
$ 10,128,606 $ 6,192,294 $ 16,320,900
302,981 - 302,981
778,218 (778,218) -
674,940 - 674,940
- 706,007 706,007
- 118,579 118,579
= 28,447 28,447
597,450 - 597,450
345,932 602,084 948,016
33,976 125,942 159,918
1,333,373 - 1,333,373
1,144,552 3,717,818 4,862,370
15,340,028 10,712,953 26,052,981
4,088,091 1,122,781 5,210,872
8,779,982 33,290,382 42,070,364
12,868,073 34,413,163 47,281,236
28,208,101 45,126,116 73,334,217
2,370,940 - 2,370,940
52,881 - 52,881
2423821 - 2,423,821
$ 1482698 $ 163,396 $ 1,646,004
- 273,424 273,424
5,000 - 5,000
253,607 1,106,179 1,359,786
1,741,305 1,542,999 3,284,304
14,616,472 8,920,935 23,537,407
16,357,777 10,463,934 26,821,711
1,622 431 - 1,522,431
12,605,765 24 536,827 37,142 592
135,336 - 135,336
1,008,216 - 1,009,216
33,355 - 33,355
74,891 - 74,891
- 3,444,394 3,444,394
(1,106,849) 6,680,961 5,574,112
$ 12,751,714 $ 34662182 $ 47,413,896
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Exhibit C
Page 1 of 2

CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Balance Shest
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Taxes, net

Intergovernmental

Mortgages

Taxes - other

Other

Due from other funds
Committed assets - cash and cash equivalents
Restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents
Inventory

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Compensated absences payable
Due to other funds
Prepaid Performing Arts revenue
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Tax rollback
Property taxes
Vehicle tax
Lot clearing fees
Installment sale
Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund balances

Nonspendable:

Inventory
Restricted:

Drug fund

Hospitality tax

E911

Southside Housing
Committed:

Downtown development

Economic development
Assigned:

Main street project

Subsequent year's expenditures
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances

See notes to basic financial statements.

Other Total
Hospitality Governmental Governmental
General Tax Funds Funds
$ 10,031,295 $ 100 3 97,210 $ 10,128,605
302,981 - - 302,981
597,450 - - 597 450
670,000 B 4,940 674,940
257,293 82,543 - 339,836
- - 6,096 6,096
793,027 - - 793,027
1,333,373 - - 1,333,373
135,336 1,009,216 - 1,144,552
33,976 - - 33,976
$ 14,154,731 3 1,091,859 3 108,246 $ 15,354,836
3 1,481,824 $ 874 $ - $ 1,482,698
63,907 596 - 64,503
- 14,808 - 14,808
- 5,000 - 5,000
1,545,731 21,278 - 1,567,009
233,175 - - 233,175
198,160 - - 198,160
74,955 - - 74,955
11,104 - - 11,104
670,000 - - 670,000
1,187,394 - - 1,187,394
33,976 - - 33,976
135,336 - - 135,336
- 1,070,581 - 1,070,581
- - 74,891 74,891
z - 33,355 33,355
1,307,519 - - 1,307,519
100,135 - - 100,135
5,000 - - 5,000
1,898,234 - - 1,898,234
7,941,406 - - 7,941,406
11,421,606 1,070,581 108,246 12,600,433
$ 14,154,731 $ 1,091,859 $ 108,246 $ 15,354,836
18
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Exhibit C
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA Page 2 of 2

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different because:

Total fund balance, governmental funds $ 12,600,433

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore not reported in the funds.

Gross capital assets at historical cost $ 28,097,654
Accumulated depreciation (15,229,581) 12,868,073
Net pension plan liabilities (13,485,712)

Contributions to the pension plans in the current fiscal year are
deferred outflows of resources on the Statement of Net Position 2,370,940

Contributions for other post employment benefits in the current fiscal
year are deferred outflows of resources on the Statement of Net
Position 52,881

Net other postemployment benefits liability ; (735,040)

Liabilities for earned revenues considered deferred inflows of resources in
fund statements. 1,187,394

Long-term liabilities used in governmental activities are not financial
uses and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Capitalized leases (262,308)
Compensated absences payable (322,516) (584,824)
Pension related deferrals (1,522,431)
Net position of governmental activities $ 12,751,714

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit D
Page 1 of 2

CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year ended June 30, 2019

Other Total
Hospitality Governmental Governmental
General Tax Funds Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ 6,683,260 $ 956,197 $ - $ 7,639,457
Fines, fees, licenses and permits 3,645,198 - - 3,645,198
Intergovernmental 485,724 g = 485,724
Charges for services 273,543 80,072 - 353,615
Grants 3,000 6,700 - 9,700
Interest 162,806 485 224 163,495
Other 137,336 14,058 37,982 189,376
Total revenues 11,390,867 1,057,492 38,206 12,486,565
Expenditures
Current:
General administration 3,154,520 768,504 - 3,923,024
Public safety 4,740,010 - - 4,740,010
Public works 891,253 - - 891,253
Code enforcement 265,655 - - 265,655
Parks and playgrounds 147,065 - - 147,065
Community service 202,295 - - 202,295
Capital outlay 618,852 = = 618,852
Debt service:
Principal 185,228 - B 185,228
Interest and fees 6,656 - - 6,656
Total expenditures 10,211,534 768,504 - 10,980,038
Net change in fund balances 1,179,333 288,988 38,206 1,506,527
Fund balance - beginning 10,242,273 781,593 70,040 11,093,906
Fund balance - ending $ 11.421,606 3 1,070.581 $ 108,246 $ 12,600,433
See notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit D
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA Page 2 of 2
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2019

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 1,506,527

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the current

period.
Capital outlay expenditures which were capitalized $ 618,852
Depreciation expense for governmental assets (1,073,953) (455,101)

Contributions to the pension plans in the current fiscal year are not included
on the Statement of Activities 124,964

Contributions to the OPEB plan in the current fiscal year are not included on
the Statement of Activities 15,600

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Lot clearing fees 23

Tax rollback (105,583)

Property taxes (439,413)

Vehicle taxes 13,623 (531,450)

Collections on installment sales are recognized as revenue in the government
fund financial statements. However, this transaction has no effect on the
statement of activities. (50,000)

The repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. The transaction, however, has any
effect on net position. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Principal payments on long-term debt 185,228

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and, therefore, are reported as expenditures in
the governmental funds.

Compensated absences (16,927)
Loss on sale of capital assets (41,259)
Pension expense (69,992)
OPEB expense 15,791 (112,387)
Rounding -
Change in net position of governmental activities $ 683381

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year ended June 30, 2019

Exhibit E

Revenues
Taxes
Fines, fees, licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Grants
Interest
Other
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General administration
Public safety
Public works
Code enforcement
Parks and playgrounds
Community service
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fees
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources
Fund balance appropriated
Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balances
Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

See notes to basic financial statements.

22

Variance
With Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 6,179,238 $ 6,332,238 $ 6,683,260 3 351,022
3,574,075 3,614,075 3,645,198 31,123
645,507 468,507 485,724 17,217
100,000 261,000 273,543 12,543
- - 3,000 3,000
40,000 140,000 162,806 22,806
82,000 120,600 137,336 16,736
10,620,820 10,936,420 11,390,867 454 447
3,834,431 3,924,306 3,154,520 769,786
5,277,555 5,274,013 4,740,010 534,003
897,150 940,650 891,253 49,397
270,997 278,997 265,655 13,342
193,300 193,300 147,065 46,235
280,329 289,179 202,295 86,884
495,358 631,000 618,852 12,148
185,240 185,240 185,228 12
7,460 7,460 6,656 804
11,441,820 11,724,145 10,211,534 1,512,611
(821,000) (787,725) 1,179,333 1,967,058
821,000 787,725 - (787,725)
821,000 787,725 - (787,725)
$ - $ - 1,179,333 $ 1,179,333
10,242,273
$ 11,421,606




CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Hospitality Tax Fund

Year ended June 30, 2019

Exhibit F

Revenues
Taxes
Charges for services
Interest
Grants
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General administration
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources
Fund balance appropriated
Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balances

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

See notes to basic financial statements.

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 862,145 $ 862,145 $ 956,197 $ 94,052
95,000 95,000 80,072 (14,928)
500 500 465 (35)
100,000 103,200 6,700 (96,500)
10,000 10,000 14,058 4,058
1,067,645 1,070,845 1,057,492 (13,353)
1,092,645 1,095,845 768,504 327,341
1,092,645 1,095,845 768,504 327,341
(25,000) (25,000) 288,988 313,988
25,000 25,000 - (25,000)
25,000 25,000 - (25,000)
3 - $ » 288,988 $ 288,988
781,593
$ 1,070,581
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2019

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivahles:
Water and sewer
Garbage and trash
Roll-off containers
Other

Due from Gross Revenue Fund

Inventory

Restricted assets:
Customer deposits
Bond depreciation account
Bond contingency account
Bond debt service and reserve account

Total restricted assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets (net, where applicable, of
accumulated depreciation)
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Compensated absences payable
Current portion of long-term debt
Capital leases payable - current
Customer deposits
Due to General Fund
Due to Solid Waste Fund
Total current liabilities

Long-term:liabilities
Compensated absences payable
Revenue bonds and notes payable
Capital leases payable - long-term
Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt payments
Unrestricted
Total net position

See notes to basic financial statements.

Major Enterprise Funds

Gross Solid
Revenue Waste Total

$ 4093532 $ 2098762 $ 6,192,294
706,007 - 706,007
- 118,579 118,679
- 28,447 28,447
345,328 256,756 602,084
- 14,389 14,389
125,942 - 125,942
273,424 . 273,424
2,008,741 - 2,008,741
774,919 - 774,919
660,734 - 660,734
3,717,818 - 3,717,818
8,988,627 2,516,933 11,505,560
32,319,358 2,093,805 34,413,163
32,319,358 2,093,805 34,413,163
41,307,985 4,610,738 45,918,723
140,783 22,613 163,396
15,901 9,229 25130
664,413 - 664,413
291,133 125,503 416,636
273,424 - 273,424
422,312 355,906 778,218
14,389 - 14,389
1,822,355 513,251 2,335,606
79,504 46,144 125,648
8,115,997 - 8,115,997
393,327 285,963 679,290
8,588,828 332,107 8,920,935
10,411,183 845,358 11,256,541
22,854,488 1,682,339 24 536,827
3,444 394 - 3,444 394
4,597,920 2,083,041 6,680,961
$ 30,896,802 $ 3,765,380 $ 34,662,182

24




CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA Exhibit

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2019

Major Enterprise Funds

Gross Solid
Revenue Waste Total
Operating revenues
Water and sewer charges $ 7837888 § - $ 7,837,888
Water penalties 270,061 - 270,061
Tap fees 10,750 - 10,750
Garbage fees - 1,369,812 1,369,812
Roll-off containers - 219,265 219,265
Transfer station - 1,172,209 1,172,209
Other 61,055 29,398 90,453
Total operating revenues 8,179,754 2,790,684 10,970,438
Operating expenses
Public works administration 311,011 B 311,011
Residential garbage - 342,873 342,873
Commercial garbage - 278,427 278,427
Recycling - 107,449 107,449
Transfer station - 645,519 645,519
Water service 1,387,474 - 1,387,474
Utility billing 207,590 - 207,590
Wastewater treatment 1,095,148 - 1,095,148
Wastewater collection 706,209 - 706,209
General expense 581,656 370,214 951,870
Vehicle maintenance 56,168 112,336 168,504
Information technology 157,001 45,919 202,920
Building and grounds maintenance 47,268 51,037 98,305
Administrative - 13,255 13,255
Depreciation and amortization 1,186,307 415,200 1,601,507
Total operating expenses 5,735,832 2,382,229 8,118,061
Operating income 2,443,822 408,455 2,852,377
Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Interest income 118,214 18,880 137,094
Interest expense (111,278) (4,082) (115,360)
Insurance proceeds 1,194 15,066 16,260
Proceeds from settlement - 335,000 335,000
Gain on sale of capital assets 3,847 5,509 9,356
Total other income (expense) 11,977 370,373 382,350
Income before capital grants 2,455,899 778,828 3,234,727
Capital grants 863,062 - 863,062
Change in net position 3,318,961 778,828 4,097,789
Total net position - beginning 27,577,841 2,986,552 30,564,393
Total net position - ending $ 30,896,802 $§ 3,765380 $ 34,662,182

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2019

MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Gross Solid
Revenue Waste Total
Operating activities
Cash received from customers $ 8,660,413 $ 2,699,825 $ 11,360,238
Cash paid to employees (1,381,316) (934,691) (2,316,007)
Cash paid to suppliers (3,467.435) (1,046,139) (4,513,574)
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,811,662 718,995 4,530,657
Noncapital financing activities
Due from other funds - (4,336) (4,336)
Due to other funds 18,870 211,870 230,740
Customer deposits 9,259 - 9,259
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities 28,129 207,534 235,663
Capital and related financing activities
Loan proceeds 3,652,793 - 3,652,793
Proceeds from capital grants 863,062 - 863,062
Insurance proceeds and other 1,194 15,066 16,260
Proceeds from settlement - 335,000 335,000
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 3,847 7,033 10,880
Acquisition of capital assets, (3,523,999) (565,634) (4,089,633)
Principal paid on capital leases (270,824) (161,684) (432,508)
Principal paid on bond and note maturities (604,648) - (604,648)
Interest and bond fees (111,278) (4,082) (115,360)
Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities 10,147 (374,301) (364,154)
Investing activities
Interest on investments 118,214 18,880 137,094
Net cash provided by investing activities 118,214 18,880 137,094
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents/investments 3,968,152 571,108 4,539,260
Cash and cash equivalents/investments
Beginning of year 3,843,198 1,527,654 5,370,852
End of year $ 7,811,350 $ 2,098,762 $ 9,910,112
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Operating income $ 2443922 § 408455 § 2852377
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,186,307 415,200 1,601,507
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 480,659 (90,859) 389,800
Inventory 65,656 - 65,656
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (372,088) (7,257) (379,345)
Compensated absences 7,206 (6,544) 662
Total adjustments 1,367,740 310,540 1,678,280
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 3,811,662 $ 718,995 $ 4,530,657
Reconciliation to statement of net position
Unrestricied cash and cash equivalents $ 4,093,532 $ 2,098,762 $ 6,192,294
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,717,818 - 3,717,818
$ 7,811,350 $ 2,098,762 § 9910112

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2019

Exhibit J

Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Total assets

Liabilities
Due to firemen's association
Total liabilities

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the City of Lancaster (“City”) conform with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governments. The following is a
summary of the more significant accounting policies:

A.

Reporting Entity

The City of Lancaster is a municipal corporation of the State of South Carolina located in
Lancaster County, and as such possesses all the general powers granted by the Constitution and
laws of South Carolina to municipal corporations. The City has no component units.

Basis of Presentation — Basis of Accounting

Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of
activities display information about the City. These statements include the financial activities of
the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize
the double counting of internal activities. However, interfund services provided are not eliminated.
These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City’s
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program
or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense
allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities.
Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services
offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's
funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in
which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as
subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

B. Basis of Presentation — Basis of Accounting (continued)

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund, the general operating fund of the City, includes the
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures relating to the general administration and the
traditional services provided by the City, and accounts for all financial resources except
those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. The primary revenue sources
are ad valorem taxes, grants and various other taxes and licenses. The primary
expenditures are for public safety, street maintenance and construction.

Hospitality Tax Fund — This fund was established to preserve the general health, safety, and
welfare of the general public and to promote the tourism industry within the City of
Lancaster. The primary revenues are a 2% hospitality tax imposed by the City on prepared
food and ticket sales from the City's Performing Arts Series. The primary expenditures are
for event promotion and execution as well as expenditures for the Performing Arts Series
performance contracts.

The City reports the following nonmajor governmental funds:

Southside Project Fund — This fund is used to account for the sale of low-income housing.

E911 Fund — This fund accounts for fees levied through telephone bills to support the
emergency 911 system. Funds are restricted for improvements and expansion of the City’s
emergency 911 system.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Gross Revenue Fund - The Gross Revenue Fund was established to account for the

financial position and results of operations relating to the water and sewer service to the
residential and industrial users of the City's system. The City’s water and sewer
infrastructure extends beyond its corporate limits.

Solid Waste Fund - The Solid Waste Fund was established to account for the financial

position and results of operations relating to solid waste collection services to the residential
and industrial users.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
B. Basis of Presentation — Basis of Accounting (continued)
The City reports the following fiduciary funds:

Agency Funds - The Agency Fund is custodial in nature and does not present results of
operations or have a measurement focus. Agency funds are accounted for using the accrual
basis of accounting. This fund is used to account for assets that the government holds for
others in an agency capacity. The City utilizes the following agency fund:

Firemen's Fund - This fund is used to account for financial resources derived primarily
from the firemen's share of insurance proceeds remitted by the State of South Carolina
to the City firemen and expended for their benefit.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

In accordance with South Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the City are maintained during
the year using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The govermment-wide,
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus, except for the agency funds which have no measurement focus. The
government-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at
the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-
exchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or
giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entittements, and donations. On
an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes
are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the City enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

B.

Basis of Presentation — Basis of Accounting (continued)
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting (continued)

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded
when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term
debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures
to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases
are reported as other financing sources. The City considers all revenues available if they are
collected within 60 days after year-end. At June 30, taxes receivable that are materially past due
are not considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year.

Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the City, intergovernmental
revenues, and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not
measurable until received in cash. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the
qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been satisfied.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of
specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when
program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net position available to
finance the program. It is the City’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to
such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Budgets

The City follows these procedures jn establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

Approximately 60 days prior to June 30, the City Administrator submits to City Council a proposed
detailed, line-item operating budget for the General, Hospitality Tax, Gross Revenue, and Solid
Waste Funds for fiscal year commencing July 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them by function and activity.

A public hearing is conducted to obtain citizen comments on the proposed budget, which is later

legally adopted through the passage of an appropriation ordinance by City Council. The legal
level of budgetary control is at the object class level.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

C.

Budgets (continued)

Budgetary line item revisions within a fund in an amount in excess of $5,000 per instance must be
approved by City Council. All revisions for capital improvement items or which would increase or
decrease the adopted budget's individual fund balances must be approved by City Council.

The City prepares all of its budgets on the modified accrual basis. This basis differs from
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for the Gross Revenue

Fund and the Solid Waste Fund. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

The combined statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget
and Actual, as presented excludes all data of the Special Revenue Funds and the Capital Project
Fund as required when an annual budget has not been legally adopted.

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits, certificates of deposits and
deposits with the State Treasurer's investment pool with maturities of three (3) months or less.

2. Investments

The City's investment policy is designed to operate within existing statutes (which are identical
for all funds, fund types and component units within the State of South Carolina) that authorize
the City to invest in the following:

1. Obligations of the United States and its agencies, the principal and interest of which is fully
guaranteed by the United States;

2. Obligations issued by the Federal Financing Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, the Bank of
Cooperatives, the Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, the Federal Land Banks, the Federal
Home Loan Banks, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, the Federal National
Mortgage Association, the Government National Mortgage Association, the Federal Housing
Administration, and the Farmers Home Administration, if, at the time of investment, the
obligor has a long-term, unenhanced, unsecured debt rating in one of the top two ratings
categories, without regard to a refinement or gradation of rating category by numerical
meodifier or otherwise, issued by at least two nationally recognized credit rating
organizations;

3. General obligations of the State of South Carolina or any of its political units; or (ii) revenue
obligations of the State of South Carolina or its political units, if at the time of investment, the
obligor has a long-term, unenhanced, unsecured debt rating in one of the top two ratings
categories, without regard to a refinement or gradation of rating category by numerical
modifier or otherwise, issued by at least two nationally recognized credit rating
organizations.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (continued)

2. Investments (continued)

4.

Savings and Loan Associations to the extent that the same are insured by an agency of the
Federal Government;

. Certificates of deposit where the certificates are collaterally secured by securities of the type

described in (a) and (b) above held by a third party as escrow agent or custodian, of a
market value not less than the amount of the certificates of deposit so secured, including
interest; provided, however, such collateral shall not be required to the extent the same are
insured by an agency of the federal government;

. Repurchase agreements when collateralized by securities as set forth in this section; and

. No load open-end or closed-end management type investment companies or investment

trusts registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, where the
investment is made by a bank or trust company or savings and loan association or other
financial institution when acting as trustee or agent for a bond or other debt issue of that
local government unit, political subdivision, or county treasurer if the particular portfolio of
the investment company or investment trust in which the investment is made (i) is limited to
obligations described in items (a), (b), (c), and (f) of this subsection, and (ii) has among its
objectives the attempt to maintain a constant net asset value of one dollar a share and to
that end, value its assets by the amortized cost method.

The City pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to
maximize investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand
deposits and are considered cash and cash equivalents. The City currently or in the past year
has used the following investment:

South Carolina Local Government Investment Pool (“Pool”) investments are invested with
the South Carolina State Treasurer's Office, which established the South Carolina Pool
pursuant to Section 6-6-10 of the South Carolina Code. The Pool is an investment trust fund,
in which public monies in excess of current needs, which are under the custody of any city
treasurer or any governing body of a political subdivision of the State, may be deposited. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools and GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value
Measurement and Application, investments are carried at fair value determined annually
based upon (a) quoted market prices for identical or similar investments or (b) observable
inputs other than quoted market prices. The total fair value of the Pool is apportioned to the
entities with funds invested on an equal basis for each share owned, which are acquired ata
cost of $1.00. Funds may be deposited by Pool participants at any time and may be
withdrawn upon 24 hours' notice. Financial statements for the Pool may be obtained by
writing the Office of State Treasurer, Local Government Investment Pool, P.O. Box 11778,
Columbia, SC 29211-1960.
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (continued)

3. Property Taxes Receivable

The City of Lancaster assesses and levies property taxes in accordance with applicable laws of
the State of South Carolina. Real property and personal property of every description owned
and used in the City, except that which is exempt from taxation under the Constitution and
Laws of the State, is subject to taxation. An annual ordinance establishing the millage rate
associated with the levy is adopted each year as a part of the budget adoption process.
Lancaster County prints the tax notices and collects both real and personal taxes and remits
them to the City monthly.

The City of Lancaster residents have adopted a local option sales tax, whereby, an additional
1% sales tax is charged for the purpose of reducing real and personal property taxes. The City
reduces the millage rate used in assessing property taxes such that property taxes are reduced
in an amount of at least 71% of the local option sales tax collected as required by the State of
South Carolina.

Real property and all personal property other than vehicles are assessed for property tax
purposes on January 1 of each year. All taxable property is assessed in proportion to its value
on that date. The basis for value of taxable property within the City is taken from the records of
the Lancaster County Auditor. The assessment for City tax purposes is the same as that
levied by the County Auditor. Tax notices are mailed around October 1 of each year. The
taxes are due by January 15. A 3% penalty is added January 16 and another 10% is added
February 2 if still unpaid. On March 15, if tax bills are still unpaid, an additional 2% penalty is
added. Atthis time all unpaid taxes go into execution and are turned over to the delinquent tax
collector for collection.

New vehicle property taxes are assessed and levied within 120 days of the registration date of
the vehicle and payment is due upon receipt of the property tax notice. Other vehicle property
taxes are assessed and levied in the month the vehicle is scheduled for license renewal with
the South Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles and payment is due before the end of the
month of the scheduled renewal.
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (continued)

3. Property Taxes Receivable (continued)

South Carolina law allows a county to negotiate with a company for a Fee-in-lieu of Property
Taxes (“FILOT") agreement if total capital investment is $2.5 million or greater. By law, the
company has five years to meet the minimum investment threshold, and the county can offer
an additional five-year extension to complete the project. The company may include both real
and personal property under the FILOT agreement. However, property that has been on the
tax rolls in the state previously, including existing buildings, is not eligible for the FILOT. (This
restriction is waived for companies investing an additional $45 million or more in new
investment.). The FILOT may result in substantial benefits for a company. Lancaster County
had the following FILOT agreements in effect for the year ended June 30, 2019 and their
impact on the City is as follows:

Company City Tax Abated City FILOT
Duracell Mfg $ 506,969 $ 299,308
Lancaster Telephone 54 814 28,062
Nutramax 71,459 9,591
Springmaid FCU 361,715 90,502
Valmet - 5477
TST-Metso Paper - 21,558
Valmet - 26,480

4. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an
allowance for doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of
receivables written off in prior years and applying that percentage to current balances.

5. Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for
goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “due
from other funds” or “due to other funds” on the fund financial statements and internal balances
on the government-wide financial statements.

6. Inventory

Inventories held by the General and Gross Revenue Funds are valued at cost, using the first-
in/ffirst-out (FIFO) method. Inventory shown in the General Fund consists of expendable
supplies held for consumption. In the fund financial statements (General Fund), the amount
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (continued)

6. Inventory (continued)

thereof has been recorded for information purposes only as an asset, offset by a reservation of
fund balance in an equal amount. The cost value of such inventory has been recorded as an
expenditure as the items are consumed by the respective departments. The inventory asset
amount is not available for appropriation.

7. Restricted Assets

Certain resources which have been set aside for the repayment of revenue bonds are
classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable
bond covenants. The revenue bond debt service fund was established to provide for the
ratable payment of the principal and interest on all bonds as they fall due to ensure the timely
payment of principal and interest and to provide for the redemption of bonds prior to their
maturity. The amount of net position restricted for this purpose was $3,444,394 at June 30,
2019, all of which is in the Gross Revenue Fund of the City.

Additional resources have been restricted for governmental activities related to tourism and

victims’ services. Their use is limited by the applicable laws of the State of South Carolina, At
June 30, 2019, $1,009,216 was restricted in the Hospitality Tax Fund for tourism.

8. Capital Assets

The City's general and proprietary fund capital assets (having a cost in excess of $5,000) are
recorded at original cost. Donated capital assets received before June 30, 2015 are recorded
at the estimated fair value (if in excess of $5,000) at the time of donation. Donated capital
assets received after June 30, 2015 are recorded at their acquisition value.

Capital assets of the City are depreciated by applying the straight-line method to the following

useful lives:
Buildings 40 years
Infrastructure 10-40 years
Water and sewer distribution system 40 years
Fence and paving 15 years
Equipment 3-10 years
Vehicles 5-7 years

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

The City capitalizes net interest costs and interest earned as part of the cost of constructing
various water and sewer projects when material.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (continued)

9. Compensated Absences

The City of Lancaster has a liability to its employees for accumulated vacation leave. The fund
financial statements of the General Fund have recorded as an expenditure and fund liability,
the amount of accumulated vacation leave of its employees that is expected to be liquidated
with expendable available resources. Amounts that are not expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources are reported in the government-wide financial
statements as a liability. The Gross Revenue and Solid Waste Funds have recorded an
expense and liability for accumulated vacation leave of its employees.

10. Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows
of Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so
will not be recognized as an expense or expenditures until then. The City had two items that
met this criterion — contributions made to the pension plan in the 2019 fiscal year and
contributions made to other postemployment benefits in the 2019 fiscal year. In addition to
liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will
not be recognized as revenue until then. The City has one item that met the criterion for this
category - deferrals of pension expense.

11. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in
the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net position. Bond issuance costs, except for prepaid insurance costs, are
expensed in the reporting period in which they are incurred. Prepaid insurance costs are
expensed over the life of the debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (continued)

12. Net Position/Fund Balances

Net Position

Net position in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified
as net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net position
represents constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law
through state statute.

Fund Balances
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five
classifications designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund

balance can be spent. Some portions of fund balance are limited in how they can be used
and some can be used however the government decides, therefore the five classifications

of fund balance.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance

There are differences between fund balance and liquidity in governmental funds because
some assets reported in the governmental funds inherently cannot be spent. This
classification of fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either (a) assets that will never be converted into cash such as prepaid expenses and
inventory or (b) resources that must be maintained intact based on legal or contractual
requirements such as principal of an endowment or the capital of a revolving loan fund.

The City of Lancaster has the following nonspendable fund balances recorded in its
financial statements:

Inventory - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it
represents the year-end balance of ending inventories, which are not spendable
resources.
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I.Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (continued)

12. Net Position/Fund Balances (continued)

Restricted Fund Balance

This classification includes resources that are limited in how they can be spent due to
externally enforceable legal restrictions. Restricted fund balance includes assets
restricted by (a) other governments through laws and regulations; (b) grantors or
contributors through agreements; (c) creditors through debt covenants or other contracts;
or (d) enabling legislation that limits how a revenue can be used. The City of Lancaster
has the following restricted fund balances recorded in its financial statements:

Drug Fund — portion of fund balance that can only be used per the laws and
regulations established by the laws of the State of South Carolina.

Hospitality Tax — portion of fund balance that can only be used for purposes
established by Section 6-1-730 of the State of South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976,
as amended.

Southside Housing — portion of fund balance that can only be used for the purpose
of refurbishing or replacing housing for the City's low income community through
potentially forgivable loans. The use of the funds is dictated by federal grant
agreements signed by the City when the funds were acquired.

E911 Fund — portion of fund balance that can only be used for improvements and
expansion of the City’s emergency 911 system in accordance with Section 23-47-40
of the State of South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended.

Victims’ Services — portion of fund balance that can only be used for notification and
assistance to victims of crime as established by laws of the State of South Carolina.
The City of Lancaster has currently has $0 of available fund balance as of June 30,
2019 to provide victims’ services.
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D.Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (continued)

12. Net Position/Fund Balances (continued)

Committed Fund Balance

This classification of fund balance includes resources that can be used only for the
specific purposes determined by a formal action of the government’s highest level of
decision-making authority. The City Council is the highest level of decision-making
authority for the government that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the
fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance
remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to
remove or revise the limitation. The City of Lancaster has the following committed fund
balances recorded in its financial statements:

Downtown Development — portion of fund balance committed through formal
action of City Council for the improvement and redevelopment of the historic
downtown area. Any use of these resources must be approved by City Council.

Economic Development — portion of fund balance committed through formal
action of City Council to encourage economic development in the City. Any use
of these resources must be approved by City Council.

Assigned Fund Balance

The portion classification of fund balance includes resources that the government has
intentions for its use, but the resources are not externally restricted or committed through
formal action of the Lancaster City Council. The City of Lancaster has the following
assigned fund balance recorded in its financial statements:

Main Street Project — portion of fund balance assigned to support projects on Main
Street.

Subsequent Year's Expenditures — $1,898,234 of fund balance assigned to fund
construction.
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (continued)

12. Net Position/Fund Balances (continued)

Unassigned Fund Balance

The portion of fund balance that has not been reported as nonspendable, restricted,
committed, or assigned is reported in unassigned fund balance.

The City of Lancaster has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs
with multiple revenue sources. The Finance Director will use resources in the following
hierarchy: bond proceeds, federal funds, state funds, local non-city funds, city funds. For
purpose of fund balance classifications, expenditures are to be spent from restricted funds
first, followed in order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance, and unassigned
fund balance.

The City of Lancaster has also adopted a minimum unassigned fund balance policy for the
General Fund. The purpose of the Fund Balance Reserve Policy (“Policy”) of the City of
Lancaster is to establish guidelines for the use and limits on reserve levels for the City's
General Fund. This policy also sets forth the standards for setting reserve levels and is
considered to be responsive to the recommended practices of the Government Finance
Officers Association (GFOA) regarding the appropriate level of reserves in the General
Fund.

An unassigned fund balance range is established for the General Fund. The percentage
range set for this fund is based on predictability of revenues, volatility of expenditures, and
liquidity requirements of the fund.

The proposed range as established by this Policy will be reviewed periodically by the
Finance Director to ensure their continued relevance and appropriateness in light of the
actual experience of the General Fund, and in accordance with any future reserve needs

that may arise.

The unassigned fund balance range for the General Fund shall not be less than 40% and
not more than 60% of the total budgeted expenditures of the General Fund budget.
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D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (continued)

12. Net Position/Fund Balances (continued)

Unassigned Fund Balance (continued)

If it is determined there is a surplus (an amount in excess of the upper limit of the
unassigned fund balance range), the funds are to be appropriated upon approval of City
Council for the following purposes:

1. One-time capital needs. Since a surplus does not represent a recurring source of
revenue it should not be used to fund a recurring expenditure; however, if a one-
time capital expenditure has been identified, but not already funded through an
appropriation, the surplus may be appropriated for this use.

2. Reduction or avoidance of debt. [f there is short-term debt within the fund the
surplus may be applied to reduce or eliminate the debt if financial analysis proves
this to be advantageous to the City. If borrowing is scheduled, the surplus may be
used to reduce the principal amount the City needs to obtain if financial analysis
proves this to be advantageous to the City.

3. Tax, fee, or rate stabilization. Surplus funds may be designated for stabilization in
order to avoid raising taxes, fees, or rates related to the fund in subsequent years.

4. Eliminate unfunded liabilities related to the City’s Other Post-Employment Benefits
(OPEB). Any surplus may be transferred to reduce the unfunded liability in the
Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust Fund or any other fund initiated by the City to
provide post-employment benefits.

If it is determined there is a shortfall (an amount below the lower limit of the unassigned
fund balance range), the unassigned fund balance is to be rebuilt through the following
mechanisms in order of priority:

1. Impose millage in order to maintain the minimum percentage of reserve funds as
stated in this policy pursuant to the exception to the millage cap restrictions as stated in
Section 6-1-320(D) of the South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended. Section 6-
1-320(D) states that the restriction contained in Section 6-1-320 does not affect millage
that is used to maintain a reserve account.

2. An appropriation during the next annual budget process of at least 20% of the
shortfall in the unassigned fund balance until the lower end of the limit has been
reached. If this is financially unfeasible, a written plan shall be forwarded by the City
Administrator to City Council for approval in order to restore the unassigned fund
balance to an amount within the range within a reasonable time frame. This plan may
require reduction of services, reduction of workforce, increases in fees or rates or some
combination thereof.
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D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (continued)

12. Net Position/Fund Balances (continued)

13.

14.

15.

Unassigned Fund Balance (continued)

Annually, after completion of the City’'s Comprehensive Annual Financial Statement, the
Finance Director shall prepare a Fund Balance Level Status Report as part of the City's annual
budget process to be approved by the City Administrator. At least every five (5) years, City
Council will be required to affirm or revise the Policy including the percentage range established
by the category described herein.

Reclassifications

For comparability, the 2018 figures have been reclassified, where appropriate, to conform with
the financial statement presentation used in 2019.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires the City's management to make estimates
and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits

In government-wide financial statements, pensions and other postemployment benefits (OPEB)
are required to be recognized and disclosed using the accrual basis of accounting, regardless
of the amounts recognized as pension and OPEB expenditures on the modified accrual basis
of accounting. The City recognizes net pension and net OPEB liabilities for each plan for
which it participates, which represents the excess of the total pension and OPEB liabilities over
the fiduciary net position of the qualified plan, or the City’s proportionate share thereof in the
case of a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan, measured as of the City’s fiscal year-end.
Changes in the net pension and OPEB liabilities during the period are recorded as pension and
OPEB expense, or as deferred outflows or inflows of resources depending on the nature of the
change, in the period incurred. Those changes in net pension and OPEB liabilities that are
recorded as deferred outflows or inflows of resources that arise from change in actuarial
assumptions or other inputs and the differences between expected or actual experience are
amortized over the weighted average remaining service life of all participants | the respective
qualified plan and recorded as a component of pension and OPEB expense beginning with the
period in which they are incurred. Any projected earnings on qualified pension and OPEB plan
investments are recognized as a component of pension and OPEB expense. Differences
between projected and actual investment earnings are reported as deferred outflows or inflows
of resources and amortized as a component of pension and OPEB expense on a closed basis
over a multi-year period beginning with the period in which the difference occurred.
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Detail Notes on All Funds

A. Assets
1. Deposits and Investments

At year-end the carrying amount of the City's cash deposits was $8,503,088 and the bank
balance was $9,322,004. Of the bank balance, $750,000 was covered by federal depository
insurance and $8,572,004 was covered by collateral held by the pledging financial institutions
in the City's name.

At June 30, 2019, the City had the following investments and maturities.

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity Rating
State Treasurer's Investment Pool $ 14,052,391 N/A A
Total Investments $ 14,052,391

Interest Rate Risk. The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates.

Credit Risk. State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the United States and
agencies thereof; general obligations of the State of South Carolina or any of its political units;
savings and loan associations to the extent that the same are insured by an agency of the
Federal government; certificates of deposit where the certificates are collaterally secured by
securities of the type described above; or deposit accounts with banking institutions. Statutes
also allow the State Treasurer to assist local governments in investing funds. The City is
under no contractual agreements which restrict investment alternatives or violate legal
provisions.

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of
the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments
or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City has no
investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by its trust department
but not in the City’s name.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The City places no limit on the amount that the City may invest
in any one issuer.

The City’s cash and investments are presented on the financial statements as follows:

Cash and investments

Primary government $ 16,320,900
Fiduciary funds 38,836
Restricted and committed assets 6,195,743
Total $ 22555479
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Il. Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

A. Assets (continued)

2. Receivables — Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

At June 30, 2019, the City's receivable balances (unrestricted and restricted accounts
receivable and taxes receivable in the accompanying statement) were as follows:

Govemment - wide Financial Statements
Fund Financial Statements

Gross

Hospitality — Revenue  SolidWaste  Nonmajor Adjustments to
General Fund  Tax Fund Fund Fund Funds Total Full-Accral

Receivables:
Toxes $ 413164 - 3 -8 - 8 - 0§ 413184 $ £
Intergovemmental 597,450 - - - - 597,450 -
Mortgeges 670,000 - - - 138,803 808,803 -
Water and sewer “ - 706,007 - s 706,007 -
Garbege and trash - - - 118579 - 118579 -
Rall-off containers . = s 31,283 . 31,283 .
Other 451,084 82543 345328  2%7% 6,096 1,141,787 -
Gross recsivebles 2131678 82543 1051335 406,618 144,859 3,817,073 =
Less allowence for unedleciibles 303,954 5 - 2836 133,863 440,653 -
Net ot receivables § 1827724 $ 82543 $ 1051335 $ 403,782 $ 11,036 $ 33/6420 § -
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Il.  Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

A. Assets (continued)

3. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as
follows:

Depreciation was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General administration $ 376,649
Public safety 550,623
Public works 125,799
Parks and playgrounds 20,882
Total depreciation expense 5 1,073,953
Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Transfers Balances

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 4029253 % - $ 800 $ = § 4028453
Construction in progress 31,204 28,434 - - 59,638
Total capital assets not being depreciated 4,060,457 28,434 800 - 4,088,091
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements ) 8,019,254 320,774 - - 8,340,028
Machinery and Equipment 8,745,070 269,644 140,627 - 8,874,087
Infrastructure 6,795,448 - - - 6,795,448
Total capital assets being depreciated 23,559,772 590,418 140,627 - 24,009,563
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 3,282,984 258,007 - - 3,540,991
Machinery and Equipment 7,320,531 533,870 100,167 - 7,754,234
Infrastructure 3,652,280 282,076 - - 3,934,356
Total accumulated depreciation 14,255,795 § 1,073,953 § 100,167 § - 15,229,581
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 9,303,977 8,779,982
Gaovernmental activity capital assets, net $ 13,364,434 $ 12,868,073
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

ll. Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

A. Assets (continued)

4, Capital Assets (continued)

Capital asset activity for the business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2019 was

as follows:

Business-type activities:
Gross Revenue
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Equipment
Water and Sewer System
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building and building improvements
Equipment
Water and Sewer System
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Gross Revenue capital assets, net

Solid Waste
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Solid Waste capital assets, net
Business-type activities capital assets, net

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Transfers Balances
$ 366,054 $ - $ - $ - $ 366,054
8,294,590 3,220,680 - (11,054,850) 460,420
8,660,644 3,220,680 - (11,054,850) 826,474
2,722,235 - - - 2,722,235
5,818,576 289,637 33,751 - 6,074,462
41,643,714 13,682 - 11,054,850 52,712,246
50,184,525 303,319 33,751 11,054,850 61,508,943
1,117,004 48,908 - - 1,165,912
5,600,577 168,786 33,751 - 5,735,612
22 145,922 968,613 - - 23,114,535
28,863,503 $ 1186307 $ 33751 § - 30,016,059
21,321,022 31,492,884
29,081,666 32,319,358
$ 32089 $ 296,306 $ = $ (32,089 $ 296,306
126,528 - - 32,089 158,617
4 683,557 235,169 197,923 - 4,720,803
1,339,664 34,159 - - 1,373,823
6,149,749 269,328 197,923 32,089 6,253,243
126,528 981 - - 127,500
3,637,089 360,290 196,399 - 3,800,980
473,326 53,929 - - 527,255
4236943 $ 415200 $§ 196,399 $ - 4,455,744
1,912,806 1,797,499
1,944,895 2,093,805
$ 31,926,561 $ 34413163
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

ll. Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

A. Assets (continued)

3. Capital Assets (continued)

Construction commitments

The government has active construction projects in the Gross Revenue Fund as of June 30,
2019. At year-end, the government’'s commitments with contractors are as follows:

Project Spent-to-date Remaining Commitment

Sludge Dewatering Press 3 49,250 $ 6,750

B. Liabilities

1. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Payables at June 30, 2019, were as follows:

Governmental-wide Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Other
Hospitality Tax ~ Governmental Gross Revenue Solid
General Fund Fund Funds Fund Waste Total
Payables:
Accounts and vouchers $ 1002005 $ - 3 - $ 84,733 § - 5 1,086,738
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 348,286 874 - 34,684 17,128 400,972
Accrued interes| payable 1,199 - = 21,366 1,585 24 150
Other 130,334 = = = 3.200 134,234
Total accounts payable
and accrued liabilities $ 1481824 § 874 & - 8 140783 § 22613 & 1,646,094
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June 30, 2019

Il. Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)
B. Liabilities

2. Capital Leases

The City has entered into several lease agreements for financing the construction and
acquisition of capital assets. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting
purposes since titles transfer at the end of the lease terms. Therefore, certain leases have
been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments and as a result,
building and equipment and the related liability is included in the government-wide financial
statements in the governmental activities column. Capital leases are also included in the
proprietary fund financial statements and the business-type activities column of the
government-wide financial statements as equipment and a liability for the Gross Revenue
Fund and Solid Waste Fund as of the date of their inception.

At June 30, 2019, the City leased buildings, infrastructure, vehicles, and equipment valued at:

Accumulated Net Book
Classes of Property Cost Depreciation Value
Buildings $ 180,505 $ 112,063 $ 68,442
Infrastructure 2,943,975 913,859 2,030,116
Equipment 922,755 341,206 581,549
Vehicles 557,781 189,833 367,948
Total $ 4,605,016 $ 1,556,961 $ 3,048,055

Amortization of leased buildings, infrastructure, vehicles and equipment under capital assets is
included with depreciation expense.

For the City, the future minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2019 were as follows:

Fiscal Year Governmental Activities Business - Type Activities
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2020 5 189,104 $ 4,098 $ 417,323 $ 30,469
2021 68,197 1,428 419,938 16,236
2022 5,007 50 168,897 4,071
2023 = = 89,768 1,688
$ 262,308 $ 5,576 $ 1,095926 3 52,464
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Il.  Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

B. Liabilities (continued)

3. State Revolving Loans

The City’s state revolving loans at June 30, 2019 are comprised of the following:

2000 State Revolving Loan — On August 8, 2000 the City received a
direct placement State Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan from the
State of South Carolina Budget and Control Board of $1,319,160 for
sewer line rehabilitation and wastewater treatment plant improvements.
The project was completed in 2002 and only $1,299,879 of loan funds
was used. The loan originally had an interest rate of 3.5%. On
December 7, 2011, the interest rate was reduced to 2.25% and is payable
in quarterly payments of $21,328, including principal and interest, and
matures in October 2021. $ 206,829

2003 State Revolving Loan — On December 17, 2002, the City received a
direct placement Sewer Line Rehabilitation Revolving Loan of $952,151
for the second phase of the sewer line rehabilitation and wastewater
treatment plantimprovements. The lean originally had an interest rate of
3.75%. On December 7, 2011, the interest rate was lowered to 2.25%
and is payable in quarterly payments of $15,575, including principal and
interest, and matures in October 2023. 265,907

2007 State Revolving Loan — On March 6, 2007, the City received a
direct placement State Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan from the
State of South Carolina Budget and Control Board of $6,253,919 for the
wastewater treatment plant upgrade and expansion. The loan has an
interest rate of 1% and is payable in quarterly payments of $86,349,
including principal and interest, and matures in March 2028. 2,890,316

2016 State Revolving Loan — On August 16, 2016, the City received
approval for a direct placement State Water Pollution Control Revolving
Loan from the State of South Carolina Budget and Control Board of
$3,612,367 for the upgrade of expansion of the Erwin Farms wastewater
treatment plant. The loan has an interest rate of 1% and is payable in
quarterly payments of $34,881, including principal and interest, and
matures January 1, 2048 3,035,520

2018 State Revolving Loan — On July 14, 2017, the City received
approval for a direct placement State Water Pollution Control Revolving
Loan from the State of South Carolina Budget and Control Board of
$2,540,599 for the rehabilitation of West Arch Street Sewer - Basin 17
and Poovey Farms Sewer — Basin 23, of which, only $2,432,534 was
drawn. The loan has an interest rate of 1% for the first 20 years and
1.5% for the remaining 10 years and is payable in quarterly payments of
$31,668 for the first 20 years and then $8,134.48 for the remaining 10
years, including principal and interest, and matures December 31, 2048. _2,381.838
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

ll. Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

B. Liabilities (continued)

3.

State Revolving Loans (continued)

Total State Revolving Loans

Less amount representing current portion 8,780,410
Long-term portion 664413
$ 8.115.997

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for this direct borrowings debt is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending Business-type Activities
June 30 Principal Interest
2020 $ 664,413 $ 94,792
2021 672,830 86,375
2022 638,595 77,954
2023 603,033 70,859
2024 578,618 64,125
2025-2029 2,388,317 237,906
2030-2034 1,175,901 155,085
2035-2039 1,188,570 95,349
2040-2044 811,604 47,448
2045-2048 58,529 4,287

$ 8,780,410 $ 934,180

The City is in compliance with the covenants as to rates, fees, rentals and charges authorizing
the issuance of the 2003 State Revolving Loan and the 2018 State Revolving Loan. The loans
require the debt service coverage ratio to be no less than 120% and 110%, respectively. The
debt service coverage ration calculation for the year ended June 30, 2019 is as follows:

2003 State 2018 State

Revolving Loan Revolving Loan
Operating revenues $ 8,179,754 $ 8,179,754
Operating expenses * 4 548,591 * 5,734,898
Operating income ** 3,631,163 2,444 856
Nonoperating revenues 123,254 ** 11,976
Income available for debt service $ 3,754,417 $ 2,456,832
Debt service, principal and interest paid $ 759,205 $ 759,205
Debt coverage ratio 494.52% 323.61%

* Per rate covenants, this does not include depreciation expense of $1,186,307.
** Per rate covenants, this does not include interest and fees on bonds totaling $111,278.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Il. Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

B. Liabilities (continued)

3. State Revolving Loans (continued)

The City has pledged future water and sewer customer revenues, net of specified operating
expenses, to repay $8,780,410 of outstanding direct placement State Revolving Loans. In
the event of a default, the City agrees to pay the State of South Carolina, on demand,
interest on any and all amounts due and owing by the City under the related agreement.

4. Long-term Obligation Activity

The following is a summary of changes in the City's long-term obligations as of June 30, 2019:

Current
Balance Balance Portion of
July 1, June 30, Long-term
2018 Additions Payments 2019 Liabilities
Governmental Activities:
Capitalized leases $ 447537 $ - $ 185229 §$ 262,308 $ 189,104
Net pension plan liability 14,235,856 - 750,144 13,485,712 E
Net OPEB liability 740,919 - 5,879 735,040 =
Compensated absences 366,708 176,950 156,639 387,019 64,503

Total governmental activities $ 15791020 § 176,950 $ 1,097,891 § 14,870,079 $ 253,607

Business-type Activities:

Capitalized leases $ 1528434 $ - $ 432508 $ 1095926 $ 416,636
State Revolving loans 5,732,265 3,652,793 604,648 8,780,410 664,413
Compensated absences 150,116 66,625 65,963 150,778 25130

Total business-type activities $ 7410815 § 3719418 § 1,103,119 $ 10,027,114 $ 1,106,179

For governmental activities, pension plan liabilities, net OPEB liabilities, and compensated
absences payable are liquidated by the General Fund.
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Il. Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

B. Liabilities (continued)

4. Long-term Obligation Activity (continued)

The total interest incurred for the year ended June 30, 2019 was $138,082. Of this amount,
$16,113 was capitalized as a component of the cost of capital assets constructed during the

year.

5. Computation of Legal Debt Limitation

The City’s general obligation debt is limited by law to 8% of the total assessed value of all
taxable real and personal property within the City limits. The latest projected assessed value as
of June 30, 2019 was $32,322,920. The computation of legal debt limits is as follows:

General obligation debt limitation ($32,322,920 x 8%) $2,585,834
General obligation debt at June 30, 2019 .

Excess of debt limit over general obligation debt $2.585,834

6. Employee Retirement Systems

Plan Description

The City is a participating employer in two statewide, cost sharing, multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plans administered by the Retirement Division of the South Carolina Public
Employee Benefit Authority (PEBA): the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS) and the
South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System (PORS). PEBA has an 11-member Board
of Directors, appointed by the Governor and General Assembly leadership, which serves as
co-trustee and co-fiduciary of the systems and the trust funds. By law, the State Fiscal
Accountability Authority, which consists of five elected officials, also reviews certain PEBA
Board decisions regarding the funding of the Systems and serves as a co-trustee of the
Systems in conducting that review. PEBA issues a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) containing financial statements and required supplementary information for the South
Carolina Retirement Systems’ Pension Trust Funds. The CAFR is publicly available on the
Retirement Benefits' link on PEBA’s website at www.peba.sc.gov, or a copy may be obtained
by submitting a request to PEBA, 202 Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, SC 29223. PEBA is
considered a division of the primary government of the state of South Carolina and therefore,
retirement trust fund financial information is also included in the comprehensive annual
financial report of the state.

The South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), a cost—sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan, was established effective July 1, 1945, pursuant to the provisions of
Section 9-1-20 of the South Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement
allowances and other benefits for employees of the state, its public school districts, and
political subdivisions,
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Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

B. Liabilities (continued)

6.

Employee Retirement Systems (continued)

Plan Description (continued)

The South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System (PORS), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan, was established effective July 1, 1962, pursuant to the
provisions of Section 9-11-20 of the South Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing
retirement allowances and other benefits for police officers and firemen of the state and its
political subdivisions.

Membership
Membership requirements are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. A brief

summary of the requirements under each system is presented below.

e SCRS - Generally, all employees of covered employers are required to participate in and
contribute to the system as a condition of employment. This plan covers general employees
and teachers and individuals newly elected to the South Carolina General Assembly
beginning with the November 2012 general election. An employee member of the system
with an effective date of membership prior to July 1, 2012, is a Class Two member. An
employee member of the system with an effective date of membership on or after July 1,
2012, is a Class Three member.

e PORS - To be eligible for PORS membership, an employee must be required by the terms of
his employment, by election or appointment, to preserve public order, protect life and
property, and detect crimes in the state; to prevent and control property destruction by fire; or
to serve as a peace officer employed by the Department of Corrections, the Department of
Juvenile Justice, or the Department of Mental Health. Probate judges and coroners may
elect membership in PORS. Magistrates are required to participate in PORS for serviceas a
magistrate. PORS members, other than magistrates and probate judges, must also earn at
least $2,000 per year and devote at least 1,600 hours per year to this work, unless
exempted by statute. An employee member of the system with an effective date of
membership prior to July 1, 2012, is a Class Two member. An employee member of the
system with an effective date of membership on or after July 1, 2012, is a Class Three
member.

Benefits

Benefit terms are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. PEBA does not
have the authority to establish or amend benefit terms without a legislative change in the code
of laws. Key elements of the benefit calculation include the benefit multiplier, years of service,
and average final compensation. A hrief summary of benefit terms for each system is
presented below.
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Il. Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

B. Liabilities (continued)

6. Employee Retirement Systems (continued)

Benefits (continued)

e SCRS - A Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more
years of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 65 or with 28 years credited
service regardless of age. A member may elect early retirement with reduced pension
benefits payable at age 55 with 25 years of service credit. A Class Three member who has
separated from service with at least eight or more years of earned service is eligible for a
monthly pension upon satisfying the Rule of 90 requirement that the total of the member's
age and the member's creditable service equals at least 90 years. Both Class Two and
Class Three members are eligible to receive a reduced deferred annuity at age 60 if they
satisfy the five- or eight-year earned service requirement, respectively. An incidental death
benefit is also available to beneficiaries of active and retired members of employers who
participate in the death benefit program.

The annual retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased
by the lesser of one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in
receipt of a benefit on July 1 of the preceding year are eligible to receive the increase.
Members who retire under the early retirement provisions at age 55 with 25 years of service
are not eligible for the benefit adjustment until the second July 1 after reaching age 60 or the
second July 1 after the date they would have had 28 years of service credit had they not
retired.

e PORS - A Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more
years of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 55 or with 25 years of service
regardless of age. A Class Three member who has separated from service with at least eight
or more years of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 55 or with 27 years
of service regardless of age. Both Class Two and Class Three members are eligible to
receive a deferred annuity at age 55 with five or eight years of earned service, respectively.
An incidental death benefit is also available to beneficiaries of active and retired members of
employers who participate in the death benefit program. Accidental death benefits are also
provided upon the death of an active member working for a covered employer whose death
was a natural and proximate result of an injury incurred while in the performance of duty.

The retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the

lesser of one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of
a benefit on July 1 of the preceding year are eligible to receive the increase.
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Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

B. Liabilities (continued)

6.

Employee Retirement Systems (continued)

Contributions

Contributions are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. If the scheduled
employee and employer contributions provided in statute, or the rates last adopted by the
board, are insufficient to maintain the amortization period set in statute, the board shall
increase employer contribution rates as necessary.

After June 30, 2027, if the most recent annual actuarial valuation of the Systems for funding
purposes shows a ratio of the actuarial value of system assets to the actuarial accrued liability
of the system (the funded ratio) that is equal to or greater than eighty-five percent, then the
board, effective on the following July first, may decrease the then current contribution rates
upon making a finding that the decrease will not result in a funded ratio of less than eighty-five
percent. If contribution rates are decreased pursuant to this provision, and the most recent
annual actuarial valuation of the system shows a funded ratio of less than eighty-five percent,
then effective on the following July first, and annually thereafter as necessary, the board shall
increase the then current contribution rates until a subsequent annual actuarial valuation of the
system shows a funded ratio that is equal to or greater than eighty-five percent.

The Retirement System Funding and Administration Act establishes a ceiling on employee
contribution rates at 9 percent and 9.75 percent for SCRS and PORS respectively. The
employer contribution rates will continue to increase annually by 1 percent through July 1,
2022. The legislation’s ultimate scheduled employer rate is 18.56 percent for SCRS and 21.24
percent for PORS. The amortization period is scheduled to be reduced one year for each of the
next 10 years to a twenty year amortization schedule.
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B. Liabilities (continued)

6. Employee Retirement Systems (continued)

Contributions (continued)

Required employee contribution rates for fiscal year are as follows:

Fiscal Year 2019 Fiscal Year 2018 Fiscal Year 2017
SCRS
Employee Class Two 9.00% 9.00% 8.66%
Employee Class Three 9.00% 9.00% 8.66%
PORS
Employee Class Two 9.75% 9.75% 9.24%
9.75% 9.75% 9.24%

Employee Class Three

Required emplover contributions for fiscal year are as follows:

SCRS
Employee Class Two 14.41% 13.41% 11.41%
Employee Class Three 14.41% 13.41% 11.41%
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.15% 0.15% 0.15%
PORS
Employee Class Two 16.84% 15.84% 13.84%
Employee Class Three 16.84% 15.84% 13.84%
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.20% 0.20% 0.20%
Employer Accidental Death Program 0.20% 0.20% 0.20%

Calculated on earnable compensation as defined in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws.
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B. Liabilities (continued)

6.

Employee Retirement Systems (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2019, the City reported liabilities totaling $8,407,435 and $5,078,277 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability (NPL) of SCRS and PORS, respectively. The
net pension liability is calculated separately for each system and represents that particular
system'’s total pension liability determined in accordance with GASB No. 67 less that System’s
fiduciary net position. The net pension liabilities were determined by actuarial valuations as of
July 1, 2017. The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of
June 30, 2018 utilizing updated procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The City's
proportion of the net pension liabilities for each plan was based on a projection of the City's
long-term share of future payroll covered by each pension plan relative to the projected future
payroll covered by each pension plan of all participating employers in SCRS and PORS,
respectively, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018, the City's proportion was .037522%
and .017922% for SCRS and PORS, respectively. At June 30, 2017, the City’s proportion was
.040519% and .018669%for SCRS and PORS, respectively.

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of $393,733 and
$510,066 for SCRS and PORS, respectively. At June 30, 2019, the City reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from the following
sources:

SCRS PORS
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred

Qutflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources Resources Resources
Differences between
expected and actual
experience 3 - $ 34299 $ - $ 56,396
Net difference between
projected and actual
earnings on pension plan
investments 416,286 282,734 314,419 -
Changes in assumptions 333,560 - 334,836 -
Change in proportional
share 1,316 728,079 - 420,923
City contributions
subsequent to the
measurement date 525,549 - 444 974 -

Total $ 1,276,711 $ 1,045,112 $ 1,094,229 $ 477,319
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B. Liabilities (continued)

6.

Employee Retirement Systems (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

$525,549 and $444,974 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from City contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
decrease of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020 for SCRS and PORS,
respectively. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

SCRS PORS
Year ended June 30:

2020 $ 58,068 $ 168,531

2021 (78,957) 97,306

2022 (239,655) (106,670)

2023 (33,406) 12,769

2024 - -
Thereafter B -

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about
future employment, mortality, and future salary increases. Amounts determined during the
valuation process are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. South Carolina state statute
requires that an actuarial experience study be completed at least once in each five-year period.
An experience report on the Systems was most recently issued as of June 30, 2015.

The June 30, 2018, total pension liability (TPL), net pension liability (NPL), and sensitivity
information shown in this report were determined by a consulting actuary, Gabriel, Roeder,
Smith and Company (GRS) and are based on an actuarial valuation performed as of July 1,
2017. The total pension liability was rolled-forward from the valuation date to the plans’ fiscal
year end, June 30, 2018, using generally accepted actuarial principles.

59




CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Il. Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

B. Liabilities (continued)

6. Employee Retirement Systems (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

The following table provides a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used to
calculate the TPL as of June 30, 2018.

SCRS PORS

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal
Acutarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.25% 7.25%

Projected salary increases 3.0% to 12.5% (varies 3.5% to 9.5% (varies

by service) by service)
Includes inflation at 2.25% 2.25%
Benefit adjustments lesser of 1% or $500 lesser of 1% or $500

The post-retiree mortality assumption is dependent upon the member's job category and
gender. The base mortality assumptions, the 2016 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality
table (2016 PRSC), was developed using the Systems’ mortality experience. These base rates
are adjusted for future improvement in mortality using published Scale AA projected from the
year 2016.

Assumptions used in the determination of the June 30, 2018, TPL are as follows.

Former Job Class Males Females
2016 PRSC Males 2016 PRSC Females
multiplied by 92% multiplied by 98%

2016 PRSC Males 2016 PRSC Females
multiplied by 100% multiplied by 111%

Educators and Judges

General Employees and
Members of the General

Assumbly
Public Safety and 2016 PRSC Males 2016 PRSC Females
Firefighters multiplied by 125% multiplied by 111%

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was based upon 30 year
capital market assumptions. The long-term expected rate of returns represent assumptions
developed using an arithmetic building block approach primarily based on consensus
expectations and market based inputs. Expected returns are net of investment fees.

60



CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Detail Notes on All Funds (continued)

B. Liabilities (continued)
Employee Retirement Systems (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

6.

The expected returns, along with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset
allocation adopted at the beginning of the 2018 fiscal year. The long-term expected rate of
return is produced by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation and is summarized in the table on the following
page. For actuarial purposes, the 7.25 percent assumed annual investment rate of return used
in the calculation of the TPL includes a 5.00 percent real rate of return and a 2.25 percent

inflation component.

Asset Class
Global Equity
Global Public Equity
Private Equity
Equity Options Strategies
Real Assets
Real Estate (Private)
Real Estate (REITs)
Infrastructure
Opportunistic
GTAA/Risk Parity
Hedge Funds (non-PA)
Other Opportunisitic Strategies
Diversified Credit
Mixed Credit
Emerging Markets Debt
Private Debt
Conservative Fixed Income
Core Fixed Income
Cash and Short Duration (Net)

Total Expected Real Return
Inflation for Actuarial Purposes
Total Expected Nominal Return

Long Term
Expected Expected
Target Asset Arithmetic Real Portfolio Real
Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return
47.0%
33.0% 6.99% 2.31%
9.0% 8.73% 0.79%
5.0% 5.52% 0.28%
10.0%
6.0% 3.54% 0.21%
2.0% 5.46% 0.11%
2.0% 5.09% 0.10%
13.0%
8.0% 3.75% 0.30%
2.0% 3.45% 0.07%
3.0% 3.75% 0.11%
18.0%
6.0% 3.05% 0.18%
5.0% 3.94% 0.20%
7.0% 3.89% 0.27%
12.0%
10.0% 0.94% 0.09%
2.0% 0.34% 0.01%
100.0% 5.03%
2.25%
7.28%
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B. Liabilities (continued)

6.

Employee Retirement Systems (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the TPL was 7.25 percent. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers in
SCRS and PORS will be made based on the actuarially determined rates based on provisions
in the South Carolina Code of Laws. Based on those assumptions, the System’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all the projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the TPL.

Sensitivity Analysis
The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated

using the discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the
net pension asset or net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is one percentage point lower (6.25 percent) or one percentage point higher (8.25 percent)
than the current rate:

1.00% Decrease| Current Discount Rate |1.00% Increase

System (6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)
SCRS |$ 10,743,141 | % 8,407,435 |$ 6,737,629
PORS 6,846,152 5,078,277 3,630,239

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information regarding the fiduciary net position of the plans administered by PEBA is
available in the Systems’ audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018
(including the unmodified audit opinion on the financial statements). Additional actuarial
information is available in the accounting and financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June
30, 2018. Copies are publicly available on PEBA’'s Retirement Benefits' website at

www.retirement.sc.gov.
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B. Liabilities (continued)

7. Other Post Employment Benefits Plan (OPEB)

Plan Description

The City's defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan (the Plan) provides medical
insurance to eligible retirees under the Medicare eligible age of 65. Employees become eligible
when the employee qualifies for retirement benefits under the SCRS or PORS and has at least
14 years of service with the City. The Plan is approved each year by City Council; the
contribution requirements of the City and plan members are established and amended by
Council. These contributions are neither guaranteed nor mandatory. Council has retained the
right to unilaterally modify its payments toward retiree health care benefits.

The Plan is affiliated with the South Carolina Other Retirement Benefits Employer Trust (SC
ORBET), an agent multiple-employer irrevocable trust administered by the Municipal
Association of South Carolina. Each participating employer is responsible for determining the
appropriate amount of contributions to remit to the Trust. SC ORBET issues a publicly
available financial report that includes audited financial statements and required supplementary
information for the Plan. A copy of the report may be obtained by writing to: Chief Financial
Officer for Risk Management Services, Municipal Association of SC, P.O. Box 12109,
Columbia, South Carolina 29211.

Plan Membership
As of January 1, 2017, the last actuarial valuation, there were 171 covered participants; 18
members are retirees and dependents receiving benefits and 153 are active participants.

Funding Policy

Eligible retired employees and their spouses are eligible for health care coverage. The
premium for retirees and spouses, if applicable, is based on the length of service with the City
and the date of their retirement. Retirees who retired prior to June 30, 2009 and active
employees who retire on or before January 1, 2010 with at least 10 years of service with the
City as of their retirement date or who retire after January 1, 2010 with at least 25 years of
service with the City will receive a monthly premium subsidy of $200 from the City and will pay
the difference between the City's subsidy and the rate effective for active employees and
spouses enrolled in the Plan. Employees who retire after January 1, 2010 who have between
14 and 25 years of service to the City will receive a monthly premium subsidy of $200 from the
City and will pay the difference between the City's subsidy and 1.25 times the rate effective for
active employees and spouses enrolled in the Plan. All other eligible retirees may participate
in the Plan at a premium equal to 1.5 times the rate effective for active employees and spouses
enrolled in the Plan.
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B. Liabilities (continued)

7. Other Post Employment Benefits Plan (OPEB) (continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Actuarial valuations of the OPEB Plan involve estimates of the reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, inflation, healthcare cost trend rates, and
future salary changes. Amounts determined regarding the net OPEB liability are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive OPEB
Plan (the plan as understood by the employer and its members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit
costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liahilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.

The following table provides a summary of the significant actuarial assumptions and methods
used in the latest actuarial valuation for the OPEB Plan.

Actuarial Valuation Date December 31, 2016
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Open
Amortization Period 30 years
Asset Valuation Method 5 Years Smoothed Market
Actuarial Assumptions:

Inflation 2.25%

Investment Rate of Return 4.75%

Health Cost Trend Rat Pre-Medicare - 7.50% for 2017 decreasing to an ultimate
ealthcare Cost Trend Rate  t0 of 5.00% for 2023

Salary Increases SCRS - 3.00% - 7.00%; PORS - 3.50% - 9.50%
90% of eligible retirees will elect coverage and 30% of

Coverage Elections those will elect to cover their spouse

Active Participation/Marriage 100% of all active employees are assumed to be married,
with female spouses being 3 years younger than males
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B. Liabilities (continued)

7. Other Post Employment Benefits Plan (OPEB) (continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (continued)

RP-2014 Mortality Table for Employees with a 95%

Mortaiity Table multiplier for both males and females

The demographic actuarial assumptions for retirement, disability incidence, withdrawal, and
salary increases used in the December 31, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study adopted by SCRS and PORS.

The remaining actuarial assumptions (e.g., initial per capita costs, health care cost trends, rate
of plan participation, rates of plan election, etc.) used in the December 31, 2016 valuation were
based on a review of recent plan experience done concurrently with the December 31, 2016
valuation.

Long-term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB Plan investments is based upon 35 year
capital market assumptions, as well as current consensus expectations and market based
inputs. The long-term expected rate of returns represent assumptions developed using an
arithmetic building block approach and are presented net of investment fees. There are no
municipal bond rate assumptions used in deriving the discount rate, and the discount rate
forecast period extends for 50 years. The expected returns, along with the expected inflation
rate, form the basis for the target asset allocation for the beginning of the 2017 fiscal year.
The long-term expected rate of return is produced by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by the target allocation percentage and adding expected inflation.

Several factors should be considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return assumption,
including long-term historical data, estimates inherent in current market data, and a log-normal
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected return, net of investment expense and inflation) are developed by the investment
consultant for each major asset class. These ranges should be combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and then adding expected inflation. The capital market
assumptions developed by the investment consultant may cover a shorter investment horizon
and may not be useful in setting the long-term rate of return for funding OPEB plans which are
likely to cover a longer timeframe. The assumption is intended to be a long-term assumption
and is not expected fo change absent a significant change in the asset allocation, a change in
the inflation assumption, or a fundamental change in the market that alters expected returns in
future years.
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B. Liabilities (continued)

7. Other Post Employment Benefits Plan (OPEB) (continued)

Long-term Expected Rate of Return (continued)

As of the most recent adoption of the current long-term rate of return by the Plan, the target
asset allocation for each major asset class, as provided by the Plan, are summarized in the
following table:

Target
Asset Class Allocation
Fixed income
Equity funds 94.3%
Cahs and cash equivalents 0.0%
57%
Total ~100.0%

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB

The City’s net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2019 was measured as of December 31, 2018 and
the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of December 31, 2016 that was projected forward to the measurement date of
December 31, 2018.

OPEB Plan
Total OPEB Fiduciary Net Net OPEB
Liability Position Liability (Asset)
(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balance as of December 31, 2017 $ 127977 $ 538,852 $ 740,919
Changes for the year:

Service cost 39,587 - 39,587

Interest on TOL and Cash Flows 58414 - 58,414

Difference between expected and actual experience 10,012 - 10,012

Contributions - employer - 101,182 (101,182)

Net investment income = 12,710 (12,710)

Benefit payments (101,182) (101,182)

Administrative expense

Net changes 6,831 12,710 (5,879)

Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ 1,286,602 $ 551,562 $ 735,040
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B. Liabilities (continued)

7. Other Post Employment Benefits Plan (OPEB) (continued)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB (continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City recognized OPEB expense of approximately
$16,000. At June 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources (deferred OPEB
charges) related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Description Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience 3 20,933 $ -
Differences between projected and actual earnings 16,348 -
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 15,600 -

$ 52,881 $ =

$15,600 that was reported as deferred outflows of resources related to the City’s contributions
subsequent to the measurement date to the OPEB Plan. This amount will be recognized as a
reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported
as deferred outflows of resources (deferred OPEB charges) related to the OPEB Plan will
increase OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30, Total

2020 $ 7,238

2021 7,238

2022 7,239

2023 5225

2024 2,648
Thereafter 7,693

$ 37,281
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B. Liabilities (continued)

7. Other Post Employment Benefits Plan (OPEB) (continued)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related
to OPEB (continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 4.75%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate was performed in accordance with GASB 74. The
projection’s basis was an actuarial valuation performed as of December 31, 2016. In addition
to the actuarial methods and assumptions of the December 31, 2106 actuarial valuation, the
following actuarial methods and assumptions were used in the projection of cash flows:

¢ Total payroll for the initial projection year consists of the payroll of the active membership
present on the valuation date. In subsequent projection years, total payroll was assumed
to increase annually using the payroll growth assumptions.

e Active employees do not explicitly contribute to the Plan.

» |n all future years, the employer continues to contribute the full ADEC through deposit to the
Trust and direct payment of benefits to plan members as the benefits come due. The
employer is assumed to have the ability and willingness to make contributions to the Trust
and benefit payments from its own resources for all periods in the projection.

¢ Projected assets do not include employer contributions that fund the estimated service costs
of future employees. :

e Cash flows occur mid-year.

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following table presents the sensitivity of the City’s net OPEB liability to changes in the
discount rate, calculated using the discount rate of 4.75%, as well as what it would be if it were

calculated using a discount rate that is 1% point lower (3.75%) or 1% point higher (5.75%) than
the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(3.75%) (4.75%) (5.75%)

Net OPEB liability $ 870,254 $ 735,040 $ 616,266
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8. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources at year-end are comprised of the following:

Deferred outflows of resources at year-end is comprised of the following:

Amount
Contributions to pension plans in current fiscal year (General
Fund) $ 970,523
Pension deferrals (General Fund) 1,400,417
Contributions to OPEB plan after measurement date 15,600
OPEB deferrals (General Fund) 37,281
Total $ 2,423,821

Deferred inflows of resources at year end is comprised of the following:

Statement of General Fund

Net Position Balance Sheet

Lot clearing fees (General Fund) $ - $ 11,104

Vehicle tax (General Fund) - 74,955

Real property tax (General Fund) - 198,160

Tax rollback (General Fund) - 233,175
Pension deferrals (General Fund) 1,522,431 -

670,000

Instaliment sale (General Fund)

$ 1,522,431 $ 1,187,394

9. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage of, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

The City participates in the South Carolina Municipal Insurance and Risk Financing Fund
(SCMIRF) to cover risk that may occur in normal operations. These risks include loss of real
property and its contents, motor vehicles, losses due to errors and omissions, general liability,

and theft and dishonesty.

The City participates in the South Carolina Municipal Insurance Trust (SCMIT) for the sharing
of risk associated with workers’ compensation claims. The pooling agreement permits the pool
to make additional assessments to its members in addition to the annual premiums.
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B. Liabilities (continued)

9.

10.

Risk Management (continued)

The City participates in a self-insurance medical program along with various other
municipalities. The program is run by the State of South Carolina. This plan provides
employee health benefits up to $1,000,000 in a lifetime maximum. All funds of the City
participate in the program and make payments to the Program based on actuarial estimates of
the amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims and to establish a reserve for
catastrophic losses.

The workers' compensation policy provides coverage as required by statute. The automobile
liability policy covers up to $1,000,000 per occurrence. The comprehensive general liability
policy covers up to $1,000,000 per claim, and the crime policy covers up to $100,000 per
occurrence. The other policies essentially cover the amount of the loss. Inthe event a claimis
settled for an amount exceeding the limits of these policies, the City would have to pay the
excess. Settled claims have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years.

Interfund Balances and Activity
a. Due From/To Other Funds

The compositions of interfund balances as of June 30, 2019 are as follows:
Payable Fund

General Gross Revenue Solid Waste Hospitality
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
Receivable Fund
General Fund $ - 3 422312 § 355906 § 14,808 & 793,026
Solid Waste Fund - 14,389 - - 14,389
Gross Revenue Fund - - - - -
3 - $ 436,701 & 355,906 § 14,808 §% 807,415

The interfund balances were used primarily for operating purposes. These amounts are
expected to be liquidated through normal operating activities of the individual funds.
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B. Liabilities (continued)

11. Commitments and Contingencies

The City participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. These programs are
subject to program compliance audits by the grantor or their representatives. The amount of
program expenditures, which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be predicted,
although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Various claims and lawsuits are pending against the City. In the opinion of the City's
management and City attorneys, the ultimate resolution of these legal matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the City's financial position.

During 2014, the City entered into an Order of Consent with the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) wherein the EPA levied a fine of $70,800 against the City for discharges of
untreated wastewater containing pollutants to navigable waters by the Catawba River
Wastewater Treatment Plant at locations not authorized by a National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES) permit in the current year and prior years. The unauthorized
discharges were caused by blockages and other maintenance issues related to the wastewater
treatment system.

Under the Order, the City will develop and submit to the EPA various assessments of the
wastewater collection and transmission system, plans for repairs and improvements to the
wastewater collection and transmission system, and plans for monitoring the wastewater
collection and transmission system. The City estimates that the project will take up to seven
years to complete. Management believes a reasonable estimate of the costs to meet the
requirements of the Order of Consent will be between $14 million and $17 million. To date, the
City has been awarded grants totaling approximately $3.5 million and has received a
commitment from the South Carolina State Revolving Loan Fund totaling $7.7 million to help
defray the costs of the remediation. $1 million of the South Carolina State Revolving Loan
Fund loan will be forgiven upon completion of the remediation project. The City anticipates it
will receive additional funding for the project as it progresses. Although substantial, the City
believes it has sufficient liquidity and borrowing capacity to handle the requirements of the
Order of Consent without creating an adverse effect on the City's financial position.

On August 2, 2017, The City of Lancaster was informed by the management of the Duracell
manufacturing facility, owned by Berkshire Hathaway and located within the city limits of
Lancaster, that it would be closing the doors of its plant in March 2019. This closing will have a
significant impact to the tax and utility revenues of the City in upcoming fiscal years. Although
the City does not expect a significant impact during the 2018-2019 fiscal year, subsequent
fiscal years will be significantly impacted. The potential overall revenue loss to the City is
estimated to be approximately $600,000 in property tax revenues and $150,000 a year in utility
revenues. The closing will result in the loss of the City’s largest taxpayer and one of its largest
utility customers. The City has already begun planning for the decreased revenues in future
fiscal years and how to cope with the loss of revenue.
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C. Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses

1. Water Agreement — Lancaster County Water and Sewer District

The City of Lancaster entered into a Water Agreement with Lancaster County Water and
Sewer District (LCWS) on October 11, 1994 to provide reserve water capacity. The agreement
is for 20 years with a renewal clause for an additional 20 years. Under this agreement fees are
assessed based on a ratio of the annual water purchased by the City from LCWS and the total
water purchased by LCWS. This ratio is multiplied by the annual debt payment LCWS incurred
as a result of LCWS financing the cost of providing the additional reserve capacity to the City.
The cost to the City for year ended June 30, 2019 was $633,637.

The City also entered into a Sewer Agreement with LCWS on October 11, 1994 to provide
treatment and capacity of wastewater to LCWS. The agreement is for 20 years with a renewal
clause for an additional 20 years. Fees are assessed in a manner similar to the water
agreement above. Revenue recognized by the City related to this agreement was $516,875 for
the year ended June 30, 2019.

D. Changes in Accounting Principles

The City adopted GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations (“GASB 83") for
the year ended June 30, 2019. The primary objective of this Statement is to enhance
comparability of financial statements among governments by establishing uniform criteria for
governments to recognize and measure certain Asset Retirement Obligations (ARQO), including
obligations that may not have been previously reported. The adoption of GASB 83 had no impact
on the City’s financial statements.

The City adopted GASB Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues (‘\GASB86") for the
year ended June 30, 2019. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in
accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for
transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing resources —
resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt — are place in an irrevocable trust for the sole
purpose of extinguishing debt. There was no impact to the City from this pronouncement.

The City adopted GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including
Borrowings and Direct Placements (*GASB 88”) for the year ended June 30, 2019. The objective
of this Statement is to improve the information that is disclosed in notes to government financial
statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which
liabilities governments should include when disclosing information related to debt. The disclosures
related to debt have been modified to include these new requirements.
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D. Pending Implementation of GASB Statements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) has issued the following statements:

Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, which is effective for the City's year ending June 30, 2020.
The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary
activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be
reported. The effect of implementation of the Statement on the financial statements has not been
determined.

Statement No. 87, Leases, which is effective for the City’s year ending June 30, 2021. The
objective of this Statement is better meet the information needs of financial statement users by
improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. The effect of
implementation of the Statement on the financial statements has not been determined.

Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period,
which is effective for the City’s year ending June 30, 2021. The objectives of this Statement are (1)
to enhance the relevance and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of
borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the
end of a construction period. The effect of implementation of the Statement on the financial
statements has not been determined.

Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests, which is effective for the City’s year ending June 30,
2020. The objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency and comparability of
reporting a government's majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve
the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. The effect of
implementation of the Statement on the financial statements has not been determined.

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, which is effective for the City’s year ending
June 30, 2022. The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of
reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1)
commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and
(3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing
definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of
the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments
and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt
obligations; and improving required note disclosures. The effect of implementation of the
Statement on the financial statements has not been determined.
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The City has evaluated all events subsequent to the balance sheet date of June 30, 2019, through
November 15, 2019, which is the date these financial statements were issued, and have determined that
there are no additional subsequent events that require disclosure.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Last Two Fiscal Years

Schedule 5

Total OPEB liability:
Service cost
Interest
Differences between expective and actual experience
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions
Net change in total OPEB liability

Total OPEB liability - beginning of year
Total OPEB liability - end of year (a)

OPEB plan fiduciary net position:
Employer contribution
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions
Administrative expense
Net change in OPEN plan fiduciary net position

OPEB plan fiduciary net position - beginning of year
OPEB plan fiduciary net position - end of year (b)

Net OPEB liability (asset) - end of year (a) - (b)
OPEB plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability
Covered payroll

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll

Notes to Schedule:

* Year Ended

June 30, 2019

Year Ended
June 30, 2018

$ 39,587 $ 38,322
58,414 57,885

10,012 15,164
(101,182) (99,316)
6,831 12,055
1,279,771 1,267,716
1,286,602 1,279,771
101,182 114,316
12,710 14,807
(101,182) (99,316)

% (14,215)

12,710 15,592
538,852 523,260
551,662 538,852

$ 735040 $ 740,919
42.87% 42.11%

$ 5425669 § 5425669
13.55% 13.66%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of December 31 of the
preceding year (measurement date). The City adopted GASB #75 during the ysar ended

June 30, 2018. Information is not available for prior years.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Contributions to the OPEB plan

Last Fiscal Year

Schedule 6

Year Ended
June 30, 2019

Year Ended

June 30, 2018

Actuarially determined contribution $ 71,726 $ 61,650
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 101,182 114,316
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (29,456) $ (52,666)
Covered payroll $ 5,425,669 $ 5425669
Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 1.86% 2.11%

Notes to schedule:

The City adoped GASB #75 during the year ended June 30, 2018. Information is not available
for prior years.

Valuation date: July 1, 2015 - July 1, 2017

Methods and suumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed

Amortization period 30 years

Asset valuation method 5 years smoothed market value
80% to 120% Corridor

Inflation rate 2.25%

Healthcare cost trends rates
Range of 5.0% to 7.5% initial
5% ultimate

Investment rate of return 4.75%

Other information:
None
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENT SECTION




GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS




CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA mEhecule

General Fund
Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,031,295 $ 9,170,110
Receivables:
Taxes, net 302,981 721,359
Intergovernmental 597,450 290,663
Mortgages 670,000 720,000
Taxes - other 257,293 308,717
Due from other funds 793,027 558,951
Committed assets - cash and cash equivalents 1,333,373 1,329,693
Restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents 135,336 120,996
Inventory : 33,976 20,150
Total assets $ 14,154,731 $ 13,238,639
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 1,481,824 $ 1,167,135
Compensated absences payable 63,907 60,387
Total liabilities 1,545,731 1,227,522
Deferred inflows of resources
Tax rollback 233,175 338,758
Property taxes 198,160 637,573
Vehicle tax 74,955 61,432
Lot clearing fees 11,104 11,081
Installment sale 670,000 720,000
Total deferred inflows of resources 1,187,394 1,768,844
Fund balances
Nonspendable:
Inventory 33,976 20,150
Restricted:
Drug fund 135,336 120,996
Committed:
Downtown development 1,307,519 1,185,016
Economic development 100,135 50,030
Assigned:
Main street project 5,000 5,000
Subsequent year's expenditures 1,898,234 821,000
Unassigned 7,941,406 8,060,081
Total fund balances 11,421,606 10,242,273

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balances $ 14,154,731 $ 13,238,639
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Schedule 8
Page 10of 6
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes $ 3,016,238 $ 3,020,719 $ 4,481 $ 2,700,532
Vehicle taxes 234,000 234,074 74 222518
Motor carrier taxes 35,000 32,938 (2,062) 57,465
Homestead 228,000 228,362 362 235,043
Delinquent taxes 259,000 260,459 1,459 5,237
Tax penalties 20,000 20,707 707 30,551
Local option sales tax 2,540,000 2,886,001 346,001 3,018,778
Total taxes 6,332,238 6,683,260 351,022 6,270,124
Fines, fees, licenses, and permits:
Victim's services 18,000 10,376 (7,624) 13,442
Court fines 140,000 138,013 (1,987) 179,007
Duke power fees 660,000 661,873 1,873 652,382
Certification fees 3,000 3,565 565 3,700
Franchise fees 98,075 114,460 16,385 132,687
Privilege licenses 2,135,000 2,154,934 19,934 2,328,188
Building permits 65,000 66,372 1,372 87,663
Payments in lieu of taxes 495,000 495,605 605 685,465
Total fines, fees, licenses,
and permits 3,614,075 3,645,198 31,123 4,082,534
Intergovernmental revenues:
State shared revenue 185,000 194,944 9,944 192,576
Merchants inventory 70,000 71,687 1,687 71,687
Accomodations tax 55,000 60,300 5,300 60,465
Exemption 108,000 108,793 793 138,387
County note payments 50,507 50,000 (507) 50,000
Total intergovermental 468,507 485,724 17,217 513,115

85




Schedule 8
Page 2 of 6
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

General Fund _
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues (continued):
Charges for services:
Lot clearing $ 10,000 3 12,718 3 2,718 $ 17,773
Fire protection contracts 180,000 187,522 7,522 34,698
School guards 71,000 73,303 2,303 51,642
See Lancaster - - - -
Performing arts - - - -
Total charges for services 261,000 273,543 12,543 104,114
Grants - 3,000 3,000 10,000
Interest 140,000 162,806 22,806 81,643
Other revenues:
Insurance proceeds 40,000 42,043 2,043 27,038
Sale of assets 11,600 10,368 (1,232) -
Police revenues 25,000 30,976 5,976 27,934
Miscellaneous 22,000 35,799 13,799 163,362
Donations 10,000 5,000 (5,000) 23,144
Cemetary fees 10,000 9,350 (850) 6,600
Planning and zoning 2,000 3,800 1,800 2,490
Total other 120,600 137,336 16,736 250,568
Total revenues 10,936,420 11,390,867 454 447 11,312,098
Expenditures:
General administration:
Mayor and council:
Personnel services 79,436 78,510 926 74,601
Operating expenses 35,300 20,102 15,198 24176
Total mayor and council 114,736 98,612 16,124 98,777
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Schedule 8
Page 3 of 6
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Expenditures (continued):
General administration (continued):
City administrator:
Personnel services $ 219,370 $ 207,469 3 11,901 $ 228733
Operating expenses 22,290 16,875 5,415 15,678
Total city administator 241,660 224,344 17,318 244 411
Building and grounds maintenance:
Personnel services 96,423 93,772 2,651 102,038
Operating expenses 65,750 54,375 11,375 27,378
Total building and grounds
maintenance 162,173 148,147 14,026 129,417
Human resources:
Personnel services 189,346 182,329 7,017 187,206
Operating expenses 138,105 89,172 48,933 91,306
Total human resources 327,451 271,501 55,950 278,512
Finance:
Personnel services 188,924 175,388 13,536 181,008
Operating expenses 26,650 23,015 3,635 19,915
Total finance 215,574 198,403 17,171 200,923
Information technology:
Personnel services 143,956 141,020 2,936 135,617
Operating expenses 683,270 486,454 196,816 313,632
Total information technology 827,226 627,474 199,752 449149
Legal services:
Personnel services 37,286 36,672 614 15,847
Operating expenses 12,150 6,933 5,217 19,690
Total legal services 49 436 43,605 5,831 35,5637
General expense:
Personnel services 932,000 696,805 235,195 712,281
Operating expenses 1,054,050 848,934 205,116 839,038
Total general expense 1,986,050 1,545,739 440,311 1,551,319
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Schedule 8
Page 4 of 6

CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Expenditures (continued):
General administration (continued):
Administrative services:
Personnel services 3 = $ (3,305) $ 3,305 $ 189,127
Operating expenses - - - 18,717
Total administrative services - (3,305) 3,305 187,844
Total general administration 3,924,306 3,154,520 769,786 3,175,889
Public safety:
Police:
Personnel services 2,664,389 2,351,470 312,919 2,096,378
Operating expenses 408,390 371,072 37,318 336,107
Capital outlay 18,000 5,952 12,048 28,618
Total police 3,090,779 2,728,494 362,285 2,461,103
Victims' services:
Personnel services 21,477 20,819 658 20,071
Operating expenses 4,500 2,350 2,150 4,294
Total victims' services 25,977 23,169 2,808 24,365
Judiciary:
Personnel services 253,904 250,321 3,583 189,279
Operating expenses 137,800 117,976 19,824 142,846
Total judiciary 391,704 368,297 23,407 332,125
Fire:
Personnel services 1,620,303 1,505,056 115,247 1,364,982
Operating expenses 145,250 114,994 30,256 120,979
Total fire 1,765,553 1,620,050 145,503 1,485,961
Total public safety 5,274,013 4,740,010 534,003 4,303,554
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BEIRGE
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Expenditures (continued):
Public works:
Street division:
Personnel services $ 333695 $ 315121 $ 18,574 $ 299,950
Operating expenses 487,450 469,164 ~ 18,286 429,949
Total street division 821,145 784,285 36,860 729,899
Vehicle maintenance:
Personnel services 68,205 66,129 2,076 80,598
Operating expenses 51,300 40,839 10,461 38,330
Total vehicle maintenance 119,505 106,968 12,537 118,928
Total public works 940,650 891,253 49,397 848,827
Code enforcement:
Personnel services 214,497 211,547 2,950 190,058
Operating expenses 64,500 54,108 10,392 47,953
Total code enforcement 278,997 265,655 13,342 238,011
Parks and playgrounds:
Operating expenses 193,300 147,085 48,235 129,444
Community service:
Other community services:
Operating expenses 214,500 134,784 79,716 86,478
Total other community services 214,500 134,784 79,716 86,478
See Lancaster:
Personnel services 51,764 49,704 2,060 47 616
Operating expenses 22,915 17,807 5,108 16,386
Total See Lancaster 74,679 67,511 7.168 64,002
Total community service 289,179 202,295 86,884 150,480
Debt service:
Principal 185,240 185,228 12 181,459
Interest and fees 7,460 6,656 804 9,181
Total debt service 192,700 191,884 816 190,640
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Schedule 8
Page 6 of 6

CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Expenditures (continued):
Capital improvements:
Capital outlay $ 631,000 $ 618,852 $ 12,148 $ 224184
Total expenditures 11,724,145 10,211,534 1,612,611 9,261,029
Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures (787,725) 1,179,333 1,967,058 2,051,069
Other financing sources (uses):
Fund balance appropriated 787,725 - (787,725) -
Total other financing sources 787,725 - (787,725) -
Excess of revenues and
other sources over (under)
expenditures $ - 1,179,333 $ 1,179,333 2,051,069
Beginning of year, July 1 10,242,273 8,191,204
End of year, June 30 $ 11,421,606 $ 10,242,273
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Schedule 9
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Hospitality Tax Fund
Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 100 $ 350
Receivables:
Taxes - other 82,543 81,081
Restricted assets 1,009,216 709,785
Total assets $ 1,091,859 $ 791,216
Liabilities and fund balances
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3 874 $ 1,755
Compensated absences payable 596 731
Due to other funds 14,808 7,137
Prepaid Performing Arts revenue 5,000 -
Total liabilities 21,278 9,623
Fund balances:
Restricted 1,070,581 781,593
Total fund balances 1,070,581 781,593

Total liabilities and fund balances

©“

1,091,859 $ 791,216
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Hospitality Tax Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

Schedule 10

Revenues
Taxes
Charges for services
Interest
Grants
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General administration
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources
Fund balance appropriated
Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balances

Beginning of year, July 1

End of year, June 30

2019 2018
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 862,145 $ 862,145 3 956,197 3 94,052 $ 917,479
95,000 95,000 80,072 (14,928) 95,616
500 500 465 (35) 344
100,000 103,200 6,700 (96,500) -

10,000 10,000 14,058 4,058 12,296
1,067,645 1,070,845 1,057,492 (13,353) 1,025,735
1,092,645 1,095,845 768,504 327,341 864,053
1,092,645 1,095,845 768,504 327,341 864,053
(25,000) (25,000) 288,988 313,988 161,682
25,000 25,000 - (25,000) -
25,000 25,000 - (25,000) -
$ - 3 - 288,988 $ 288,988 161,682
781,593 619,911
$ 1,070,581 $ 781,593
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Schedule 11
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2019

Total Nonmajor
Southside Governmental

E911 Project Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 68,795 $ 28415 § 97,210
Receivables:
Mortgages - 4,940 4,940
Other 6,096 - 8,096
Total assets $ 74,891 $ 33355 §$ 108,246
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Fund balances
Restricted:
E911 74,891 - 74,891
Southside Housing - 33,355 33,355
Total fund balances 74,891 33,355 108,246
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 74,891 $ 33355 § 108,246
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Schedule 12

CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Year ended June 30, 2019

Total Nonmajor

Southside Governmental
E911 Project Funds
Revenues
Interest $ - $ 224 $ 224
Other 37,982 - 37,982
Total revenues 37,982 224 38,206
Expenditures
Current:
Public safety - - -
Total expenditures - - -
Net change in fund balances 37,982 224 38,206
Fund balance - beginning 36,909 33,131 70,040
Fund balance - ending $ 74,891 $ 33,355 3 108,246
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Schedule 13
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

E911
Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 68,795 $ 30,099
Other receivables 6,096 6,810
Total assets $ 74,891 $ 36,909
Liabilities and fund balance
Liabilities:
Fund balances:
Restricted 74,891 36,909
Total fund balances 74,891 36,909
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 74,891 3 36,909
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Schedule 14
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

E911
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Revenues
Other $ 37,982 $ 41,208
Total revenues 37,982 41,208
Expenditures
Current:
Public safety - 43,801
Total expenditures - 43,801
Net change in fund balances 37,982 (2,593)
Beginning of year, July 1 36,909 39,502
End of year, June 30 $ 74,891 3 36,909
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Schedule 15
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Southside Project
Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 28415  § 24,770
Mortgages 4.940 8,361
Total assets $ 33,355 $ 33,131
Liabilities and fund balances
Fund balances:
Restricted 33,355 33,131
Total fund balances 33,355 33,131
Total liabilities and fund balances 3 33,355 $ 33,131
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Schedule 16
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Southside Project
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Revenues
Interest $ 224 $ 324
Total revenues 224 324
Expenditures
Current:
General administration - -
Total expenditures - -
Net change in fund balances 224 324
Beginning of year, July 1 33,131 32,807
End of year, June 30 $ 33,355 3 33,131
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS




CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Gross Revenue Fund
Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 2019 and 2018

Schedule 17

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Water and sewer
Other
Due from Hospitality Tax Fund
Inventory
Total current assets

Restricted assets
Customer deposits
Bond depreciation account
Bond contingency account

Bond debt service and reserve account

Total restricted assets

Capital assets (net, where applicable, of accumulated depreciation)

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Compensated absences payable

Current portion of long-term debt
Capital leases payable - current
Customer deposits
Due to General Fund
Due to Solid Waste Fund

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Compensated absences payable
Revenue bonds and notes payable
Capital leases payable - long-term

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt payments
Unrestricted
Total net position
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2019 2018
$ 4093532 $ 955,318
706,007 590,150
345,328 941,844
E 107
125,942 191,598
5,270,809 2,679,017
273,424 264,165
2,008,741 1,681,567
774,919 397,349
660,734 644,799
3,717,818 2,887,880
32,319,358 29,981,666
36,037,176 32,869,546
41,307,985 35,548,563
140,783 512,871
15,901 14,700
664,413 553,904
291,133 270,824
273,424 264,165
422,312 414,808
14,389 3,130
1,822,355 2,034,402
79,504 73,499
8,115,997 5,178,361
393,327 684,460
8,588,828 5,036,320
10,411,183 7,970,722
22,854,488 23,294,118
3,444,394 2,623,715
4,597,920 1,660,008
$ 30,896,802 $ 27,577,841
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Gross Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

Revenues
Water and sewer charges
Water penalties
Tap fees
Interest income
Other
Total revenues

Expenditures

Public works administration:
Salaries and employee benefits
Clothing
Vehicle maintenance
Communications
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Special contracts
Materials and supplies
Miscellaneous

Total public works administration

Water service:

Salaries and employee benefits
Clothing
Vehicle maintenance
Communications
Repairs and maintenance
Special contracts
Materials and supplies
Miscellaneous

Total water service

2019 2018
Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 7,678,200 $ 7,837,888 $ 159,688 $ 6,352,764
267,500 270,061 2,561 254,904
10,000 10,750 750 42,330
115,000 118,214 3,214 52,063
55,000 61,055 6,055 66,986
8,125,700 8,297,968 172,268 6,769,047
109,131 107,123 2,008 138,053
750 626 124 390
2,200 2,099 101 1,264
144,600 119,699 24,901 153,206
70,500 70,225 275 55,745

450 333 117 -
1,500 265 1,235 22
6,800 5867 933 4,886
7,700 4774 2,926 3,031
343,631 311,011 32,620 356,597
316,797 280,408 36,389 307,674
9,280 4.264 5,016 4241
84,500 68,929 15,571 60,460
500 30 470 5,481
50,750 50,732 18 11,645
145,500 127,807 17,693 155,978
161,950 161,779 171 199,385
703,375 693,525 9,850 641,687
1,472,652 1,387,474 85,178 1,386,551
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Page 2 of 4
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA
Gross Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)
2019 2018
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Expenditures (continued): B
Utility billing:
Salaries and employee benefits $ 137,644 $ 135,046 2,598 $ 134,609
Communications 3,000 1,390 1,610 6,462
Repairs and maintenance 600 52 548 -
Special contracts 67,950 65,732 2,218 51,093
Materials and supplies 6,200 3,389 2,811 3,786
Miscellaneous 3,500 1,981 1,519 1,213
Total utility billing 218,894 207,590 11,304 197,163
Wastewater treatment:
Salaries and employee benefits 206,417 187,326 19,091 169,090
Clothing 3,990 3,876 114 3,908
Vehicle maintenance 23,000 18,603 4 397 11,783
Communications 50 14 36 8,420
Utilities 264,250 262,587 1,663 223,828
Repairs and maintenance 185,150 151,978 33,172 106,340
Special contracts 27,000 26,778 222 18,069
Materials and supplies 32,900 25,388 7,512 92,090
Miscellaneous 424,215 418,598 5617 347,802
Total wastewater treatment 1,166,972 1,095,148 71,824 981,330
Wastewater collection:
Salaries and employee benefits 548,047 527,027 21,020 482,040
Clothing 8,300 8,235 65 4,422
Vehicle maintenance 98,800 65,273 33,627 101,901
Communications - - B 2,435
Repairs and maintenance 32,000 1,644 30,456 15,626
Special contracts 6,000 5,322 678 5,398
EPA Compliance 791,500 5,000 786,500 17,867
Materials and supplies 101,750 89,990 11,760 99,013
Miscellaneous 9,450 3,818 5,632 3,514
Total wastewater collection 1,595,847 706,209 889,638 732,216
102
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Gross Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

Expenditures (continued):
General:
Communications
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance
Special contracts
Miscellaneous
Total general

Vehicle maintenance:
Salaries and employee benefits

Building and grounds maintenance:
Salaries and employee benefits

Information technology:
Salaries and employee benefits
Repairs and maintenance
Total information technology

Debt service:
Principal payments
Interest
Total debt service

Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Fund balance appropriated
Loan proceeds
Capital grant income
Total other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other sources
over (under) expenditures

2019 2018
Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
$ ~ $ - $ = $ 21,006
257,000 219,208 37,792 230,419
39,000 455 38,545 6,511
45,000 21,074 23,926 42,134
1,436,550 340,919 1,095,631 353,668
1,777,550 581,656 1,195,894 653,738
61,371 56,168 5,203 48,224
52,038 47 268 4,770 53,776
49 973 48,156 1,817 45,234

141,800 108,845 32,955 -
191,773 157,001 34,772 45234
3,005,414 824,728 2,180,686 495,238
129,190 111,278 17,912 110,608
3,134,604 936,006 2,198,598 605,846
3,661,400 3,523,999 137,401 5,860,066
13,676,732 9,009,530 4,667,202 10,920,741
(5,551,032) (711,562) 4,839,470 (4,151,694)

1,443,782 - (1,443,782) -
3,302,750 3,652,793 350,043 1,971,406
804,500 863,062 58,562 4,138,210
5,551,032 4 515 855 (1,035,177) 6,109,616
$ - $ 3,804,293 $ 3,804,293 $ 1,957,922
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Page 4 of 4
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA
Gross Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)
2019 2018
Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual) to full accrual:
Revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures $ 3,804,293 $ 1,957,922
Payment of debt principal 824,728 495,238
Loan proceeds (3,652,793) (1,971,406)
Insurance proceeds and other 5,041 1,729
Depreciation and amortization . (1,186,307) (1,343,079)
Capital outlay 3,523,999 5,860,066
Change in net position per full accrual basis - Exhibit H $ 3,318,961 $ 5,000,470
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Schedule 19
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Gross Revenue Fund
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Operating activities
Cash received from customers $ 8660413 $ 50912460
Cash paid to employees (1,381,316) (1,380,886)
Cash paid to suppliers (3,467,435) (2,520,648)
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,811,662 2,010,926
Noncapital financing activities
Due to other funds 18,870 (61,380)
Customer deposits 9,258 20,359
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital activities 28,129 (41,021)
Capital and related financing activities
Loan proceeds 3,652,793 1,971,406
Proceeds from capital grants 863,062 4,138,210
Insurance proceeds 1,194 1,731
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 3,847 -
Acquisition of capital assets (3,523,999) (5,860,066)
Principal paid on capital leases (270,824) (251,577)
Principal paid on bond and note maturities (604,648) (495,260)
Interest and bond fees (111,278) (110,608)
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related
financing activities 10,147 (606,164)
Investing activities
Interest on investments 118,214 52,063
Net cash provided by investing activities 118,214 52,063
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents/investments 3,968,152 1,415,804
Cash and cash equivalents/investments
Beginning of year 3,843,198 2,427,394
End of year $ 7.811,350 § 3,843,198

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities
Operating income (loss) $ 2443922 $ 919,076
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 1,186,307 1,343,079
Change in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 480,659 (804,524)
Inventory 65,656 109,569
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (372,088) 445,912
Compensated absences 7,206 (2,186)

Total adjustments 1,367,740 1,091,850

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 3811662 § 2010926

See notes to financial statements.
105




CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Solid Waste Fund
Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 2019 and 2018

Schedule 20

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables:
Garbage and trash
Roll-off containers
Other

Due from other funds
Total current assets

Capital assets (net, where applicable, of accumulated depreciation)

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Compensated absences payable
Capital leases payable - current
Due to General Fund
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences payable
Capital leases payable - long-term
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities
Net position
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted
Total net position

106

2019 2018
$ 2098762 $ 1,527,654
118,579 112,673
28,447 25,032
256,756 175,218
14,389 3,130
2,516,933 1,843,707
2,093,805 1,944,895
2,093,805 1,944,895
4,610,738 3,788,602
22,613 29,870
9,229 10,319
125,503 161,684
355,906 137,113
513,251 338,986
46,144 51,598
285,963 411,466
332,107 463,064
845,358 802,050
1,682,339 1,371,745
2,083,041 1,614,807
$ 3765380 $ 2,986,552
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Solid Waste Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Garbage fees $ 1,350,000 $ 1,369,812 $ 19,812 $ 1,308,720
Roll-off containers 215,000 219,265 4,265 164,484
Recycling sales 25,000 26,909 1,909 57,425
Transfer station 1,135,000 1,172,209 37,209 1,086,295
Interest 6,000 18,880 12,880 10,047
Other 356,000 2,489 (353,511) 71
Total revenues 3,087,000 2,809,564 (277,438) 2,627,042
Expenditures
General:
Salaries and employee benefits 81,009 79,589 1,420 78,678
Insurance 157,000 147,987 9,013 151,393
Repairs and maintenance 90,000 - 90,000 -
Special contracts 6,500 6,262 238 4,886
Utilities 36,000 35,426 574 32,092
Miscellaneous 104,150 100,950 3,200 99,809
Total general 474 659 370,214 104,445 366,858
Administrative:
Clothing 400 20 380 156
Vehicle maintenance 2,350 1,774 576 3,538
Communications 1,200 754 446 3,143
Special contracts 1,000 597 403 572
Materials and supplies 12,800 9,695 3,105 1,259
Miscellaneous 1,750 415 1,335 703
Total administrative 19,500 13,255 6,245 9,371
Vehicle maintenance:
Salaries and employee benefits 119,900 112,336 7,564 96,448
Residential garbage:
Salaries and employee benefits 289,219 247,833 41,386 213,091
Clothing 4,000 3,117 883 2,340
Communications - - - 630
Vehicle maintenance 120,000 85,841 34,159 102,845
Materials and supplies 6,000 4071 1,929 18,264
Miscellaneous 3,500 2,011 1,489 2,283
Total residential garbage 422719 342,873 79,846 339,453
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Page 2 of 3
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA
Solid Waste Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)
2019 2018
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Expenditures (continued):
Recycling:
Salaries and employee benefits $ 71,771 $ 54,465 $ 17,306 $ 51,928
Clothing 900 508 392 326
Vehicle maintenance 37,000 36,799 201 25,518
Communications 500 5 495 24
Materials and supplies 20,000 13,501 6,499 37,155
Miscellaneous 4,000 2,171 1,829 2,349
Total recycling 134,171 107,449 26,722 117,300
Commerical garbage:
Salaries and employee benefits 138,868 65,301 73,567 95,731
Clothing 1,500 653 847 366
Vehicle maintenance 107,000 70,429 36,571 61,638
Special contracts 135,000 115,818 19,182 103,246
Materials and supplies 30,400 26,097 4,303 20,576
Miscellaneous 1,100 129 971 -
Total commercial garbage 413,868 278,427 135,441 281,557
Transfer station:
Salaries and employee benefits 376,502 317,586 58,916 301,140
Clothing 3,200 2,419 781 1,597
Vehicle maintenance 310,750 309,553 1,197 310,097
Communications - - - 737
Special contracts 16,000 10,065 5,935 42 003
Materials and supplies 7,000 4,694 2,306 3,789
Miscellaneous 2,000 1,202 798 840
Total transfer station 715,452 645,519 69,933 660,203
Information technology 54,950 45,919 9,031 27,574
Building and grounds maintenance:
Salaries and employee benefits 55,339 51,037 4,302 50,006
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Solid Waste Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Expenditures (continued):
Debt service:
Principal $ 161,715 $ 161,684 $ 31 $ 89,054
Interest 9,635 4,082 5,653 9,030
Total debt service 171,350 165,766 5,584 98,084
Capital outlay 568,000 565,634 2,366 566,172
Total expenditures 3,149,908 2,698,429 451,479 2,613,026
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (62,908) 111,135 174,043 14,016
Other financing sources (uses)
Fund balance appropriated 62,908 - (62,908) -
Proceeds from capital lease - - - 433,000
Total other financing uses 62,908 - (62,908) 433,000
Revenues and other sources
over (under) expenditures 3 - $ 111,135 $ 111,135 $ 447,016
2019 2018
Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual) to full accrual:
Revenues and other sources over expenditures 3 111,135 $ 447,016
Payment of debt principal 161,684 89,054
Insurance proceeds and other 20,575 44,128
Proceeds from settlement 335,000
Proceeds from capital lease - (433,000)
Depreciation and amortization (415,200) (358,666)
Capital outlay 565,634 566,172
Change in net position per full accrual basis - Exhibit H $ 778,828 $ 354,704
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Solid Waste Fund
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Schedule 22

2019 2018
Operating activities
Cash received from customers $ 2699825 $§ 2,560,188
Cash paid to employees (934,691) (882,848)
Cash paid to suppliers (1,046,139) (1,043,645)
Net cash provided by operating activities 718,995 633,695
Noncapital financing activities
Due from other funds (4,336) (4,336)
Due to other funds 211,870 85,725
Net cash provided by noncapital activities 207,534 81,389
Capital and related financing activities
Insurance proceeds and other 15,066 44 129
Proceeds from settlement 335,000 -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 7,033 -
Acquisition of capital assets (565,634) (133,172)
Principal paid on capital leases (161,684) (89,055)
Interest and bond fees (4,082) (9,030)
Net cash used in capital and related financing
activities (374,301) (187,128)
Investing activities
Interest on investments 18,880 10,047
Net cash provided by investing activities 18,880 10,047
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents/investments 571,108 538,003
Cash and cash equivalents/investments
Beginning of year 1,627,654 989,651
End of year $ 2098762 $§ 1,527,654
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities
Operating income (loss) $ 408,455 3 309,559
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 415,200 358,666
Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (90,859) (56,807)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (7,257) 18,103
Compensated absences (6,544) 4174
Total adjustments 310,540 324,136
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 718,995 $ 633,695
Noncash capital activity
Purchase of capital assets with capital lease 3 = $ 433,000
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Fiduciary Fund Type- Agency Fund- Firemen's Fund

Comparative Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2019 and 2018

Schedule 23

Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Total assets

Liabilities

Due to firemen's association
Total liabilities
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2019 2018
$ 38,836 § 32,332
$ 38,836 $ 32,332
$ 38,836 $ 32,332
$ 38,836 $ 32,332
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

July 1, 2018 Additions Deductions June 30, 2019

Firemen's Fund
Assets

Cash and temporary investments $ 32,332 $ 18,156 $ 11,652 $ 38,836
Total assets $ 32,332 $ 18,156 $ 11,652 3 38,836

Liabilities
Due to firemen's association $ 32,332 3 18,156 $ 11,652 $ 38,836
Total liabilities ] 32,332 3 18,156 3 11,652 $ 38,836

113 '.




OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION SECTION




Schedule 25
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Debt Coverage
Gross Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Operating revenues $ 8,179,754
Operating expenses (including depreciation) 5,047,075
Contract with Lancaster Water and Sewer District 688,757
Total operating expenses 5,735,832
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income 118,214
Interest expense and bond fees (111,278)
Insurance proceeds 1,194
Gain on sale of capital assets 3,847
Total nonoperating revenue 11,977
Net income 2,455,899
Add:
Depreciation allowance 1,186,307
Interest and fees on bonds 111,278
Total additions 1,297,585
Net earnings $ 3,753,484
Debt service requirements $ 759,205
Debt coverage ratio 4.94

(1.2 debt coverage required by the 2003 State Revolving Loan)
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Analysis of Victims' Services
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Schedule 26

Funds available for the year ended June 30, 2018
Victims' percentage of assessments

Total revenues
Actual expenditures

Grant and assessment receipts under expenditures

Funds available for the year ended June 30, 2019
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10,376

10,376

(23,477)
(13,101)
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STATISTICAL SECTION - UNAUDITED

This section of the City of Lancaster, South Carolina's comprehensive annual financial
report presents detailed trend and other information as a context for understanding what
the information in the basic financial statements, notes to the basic financial statements,
required supplementary information and other supplementary information says about the
City's overall financial health.

Financial Trends Information
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
government's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity Information
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most significant

local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity Information
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
City's current level of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the

future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the City's financial report relates to the services the City provides

and the activities it performs.
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Schedule 32
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Tax Revenues by Source, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year Property Tax Business License Hospitality Total

2010 $ 3,203,068 $ 1,656,818 $ 707,745 $ 5,567,631

2011 * 3,080,628 1,606,468 720,449 5,407,545
2012 3,036,358 1,545,019 731,037 5,312,414
2013 3,260,499 1,919,284 737,587 5,917,370
2014 3,281,304 1,913,382 745,050 5,939,736
2015 3,173,568 1,997,306 797,921 5,968,795
2016 3,197,003 2,049,216 845,119 6,091,338
2017 2,854,394 2,175,554 880,049 5,909,997
2018 2,700,532 2,278,277 910,481 5,889,290
2019 3,020,719 2,154,934 956,157 6,131,810

Change 2010-2019 $ (182,349) $ 498,116 $ 248412 $ 564,179

* Note: The reduction in property tax revenue for FY2010/2011 was the result of a
reclassification of certain industrial property by Lancaster County to the fee-in-lieu
category for the 2010 tax year.
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Schedule 34
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(rate per 1,000 of assessed value)

City Direct Lancaster UscC - Lancaster County Total Direct &
Fiscal Year Rate County Lancaster School District Overlapping

2010 143.50 80.90 3.30 172.00 399.70
2011 143.50 83.60 3.40 175.25 405.75
2012 143.50 83.00 3.60 183.50 413.60
2013 149.70 85.10 3.80 187.00 425.60
2014 154.70 87.11 3.95 188.00 433.76
2015 156.90 89.40 4.10 192.50 442.90
2016 164.40 94.30 4.30 202.50 465.50
2017 176.40 87.60 4.30 217.50 485.80
2018 178.50 95.60 4.50 217.50 496.10
2019 172.90 101.20 4.70 219.50 498.30

Source: Lancaster County Auditor

Note: The City's direct rate is approved for all operational and debt service expenditures
and is not broken down in the budget ordinance by those categories.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
As of June 30, 2019

Schedule 39

Net Governmental Percentage
Activities Applicable to Amount Applicable
Governmental Unit Debt Outstanding the City (1) to the City
Direct:
City of Lancaster $ 262,309 100% $ 262,309
Qverlapping:
Lancaster County 54,088,726 8.74% 4,724,964
Lancaster School District 267,909,585 8.45% 22,633,904
321,998,311 27,358,868

Total direct and overlapping debt $ 322,260,620 3 27,621,177
Note:

(1) Percentages were determined by dividing each overlapping subdivision's assessed valuation within

the City by its total assessed valuation. The debt outstanding includes general obligation bonds.
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Schedule 41
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Pledged Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds

Operating Less: Operating Net Available Debt
Fiscal Year Revenues (1) Expenses (2) Revenue Service (3) Coverage
2010 $ 6,544,305 $ 3,828,930 $ 2,715,375 $ 1,191,286 2.28
2011 6,793,898 3,956,834 2,837,064 1,197,787 2.37
2012 6,404,032 4,335,654 2,068,378 1,178,977 2.16
2013 6,044,372 4,196,683 1,847,689 958,695 1.93
2014 6,806,566 4,691,085 2,115,481 943,079 2.24
2015 6,175,412 5,049,926 1,125,486 896,231 1.26
2016 6,575,293 4,370,069 2,205,224 493,008 4.47
2017 6,588,568 5,625,881 962,687 493,008 1.95
2018 6,770,776 4,445,937 2,324,839 632,533 3.68
2019 8,303,008 4,548,592 3,754,416 759,205 4.95

Notes:

1) Operating revenue does not include interest.

2) Operating expenses do not include interest, depreciation, or amortization expenses.

3) Details to the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
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Schedule 44
CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) City Government Employees by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

FTE Employees as of June 30,

Function/Program 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
General Administration

City Administrator 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 2.0 2.0
Building and Grounds Maintenance 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 6.0 3.0 5.0 4.0
Human Resources 2.0 2.0 20 2.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Finance 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Information Technology 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Legal 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Support Services 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 0.0 0.0
See Lancaster SC 3.0 3.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Events Management 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Performing Arts 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0
Public Safety

Police 4B.5 4B.5 48.5 53.5 53.5 53.5 51.5 420 45.0 43.0
Victims' Services 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 1.0 1.0 1.0
Court Administration 6.5 6.5 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 5.0 4.0 4.0
Fire 26.0 26.0 26.0 26.0 26.0 26.0 26.0 26.0 29.0 28.0
Public Works

Street Division 7.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 8.0 8.0 8.5 6.0 7.0 4.0
Vehicle Maintenance 4.0 4.0 4.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Code Enforcement

Building, Planning & Zoning 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.0 4.0 4,0
Utilities

Public Works Administration 3.0 5.0 6.0 5.0 4.0 4.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Water Service 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 9.0 B.0 11.0
Utility Billing 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 4.0 3.0 4.0 4.0
Wastewater Treatment 7.0 6.0 7.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 5.0 3.0 4.0 4.0
Wastewater Collection 13.0 13.0 12.0 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0 12.0 12.0 11.0
Solid Waste

Solid Waste Administration 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.5 2.0 2.0 2.0
Residential 10.0 10.0 10.0 12.0 11.0 11.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 5.0
Recycling 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Commercial 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 3.0 2.0 1.0
Transfer Station 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 6.0 7.0 6.0 7.0
Total FTE Employees 170.0 170.0 171.5 179.0 181.0 182.0 182.0 160.0 162.0 155.0

Source: City Human Resources Department

Note: A full-time city employee is scheduled to work 1,966, 2,080, or 2,093 hours (including vacation and sick leave)
depending on departmental requirements.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Federal/State
Federal Pass-through
Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Grantor's Federal
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
Federal Grants:
U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed-through Lancaster County:
Community Development Block Grant 14.239 4-Cl-16-011 199,298
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development 199,298
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Passed-through the South Carolina Water Quality
Revolving Fund Authority:
South Carolina Water Pollution Control Revolving
Fund 66.458 F1-16-497-17 663,764
Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 663,764
Total expenditures of federal awards $ 863,062

* The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 1. Basis of Accounting

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (SEFA) includes the federal
grant activity of the City of Lancaster, South Carolina under programs of the federal government
for the year ended June 30, 2019. The information in this SEFA is presented in accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.

Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City of
Lancaster, South Carolina, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position,
changes in net assets or cash flows of the City of Lancaster, South Carolina.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported in the SEFA are reported on the accrual basis of accounting which is
described in Note 1 to the City of Lancaster, South Carolina’s financial statements. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

Note 3. Indirect Cost Rate

The City of Lancaster, South Carolina has not elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost
rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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10815 Sikes Place
Suite 100

‘ Charlotte, NC
28277

Blair. Bohlé & Whitsitt! 704-841-9800 Main

Certified Public Accountants 704-841-9802 Fax
wwew biwpllc.com

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Lancaster, South Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lancaster, South Carolina, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City of Lancaster, South Carolina's basic financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated November 15, 2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of
Lancaster, South Carolina’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Lancaster, South Carolina’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Lancaster, South
Carolina’s internal control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

QOur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be a material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Lancaster, South
Carolina’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’'s .
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

\Bjm.)u FBM f-wml Ree

Charlotte, North Carolina
November 15, 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal
Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Lancaster, South Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Lancaster, South Carolina’s (the “City”) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on the City's major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2019.
The City’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City of Lancaster, South Carolina complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance
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with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Bhloiw Bt s ittt e

Charlotte, Narth Carolina
November 15, 2019
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2019

Section I Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified? yes X __no
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X _none reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? yes X no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:
e Material weakness(es) identified? ____yes _X no
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified that
are not considered to be material
weakness(es)? ____yes __X none reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified.
Any audit findings disclosed that are

required to be reported in accordance

with 2 CFR 200.516(a) yes X _no
Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Numbers  Name of Federal Program or Cluster

66.458 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Capitalization
Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B Programs $__ 750,000

>

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X_no
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CITY OF LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

Section Illl — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

Section IV — Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

None reported.
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Petal Park

OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTED COST - REVITALIZATION PLAN ESTIMATE

MKSK

PRUJECT HAME: Lancaster Dawintawn Revitalisation Plan LEGEND
LOCATIOM: Lancastzr, South Carolina C.Y. - Cuble Yard Fa, - Esch
QWHER City of Lancaster &Y. - Square Yard LF. -Lineal Feat
Allgw - allowanee L5 «Lump Sum
PNOJECT MUMBER: 218729 LF.T. - Lineal Fool of Tread &F. - Squae Fonl
|DATE: January 31,2020 F.SF. - Faee Square Fool Ac. - Acce
[PHEPARED BY: MKSK
ASSUNBTIGN OFSTTEIMPROVERERTS == = L R e |
hem Descilption Tolal Qiy. Unlil__ Unltcost (3) Sub tetal (§) Tatal Cast (3) Remarks
DIV 03 CAST IN PLAGE CONGRETE
Pedestrian Concrete Pavement
Concrela pavement, broom finizh, 4° depth 853 SF. $8.00 $6840.00 Al Suest sidzuali plus Gay Soeet interseation landing
Subatal $6.040
Saat Walle
18 x 18°hL. Conerete Seat Well 158 LE. $300,00 §59.400.00
Subtatal §59,400
D1V Q4 MASONRY
Stone Matertale - Roadway
6% ¥ 6" h. Granite Cuih 1 LF. §115.00 $12.765.00 Atplanters, polinchudog curb adacent fo roadusy
Sublatal 512785
Stone Matertals - Site
A*wx 3*ht Granite Curh 480 LF $100.00 $48.000.00 Avedge of arnzment: Iplanters
Large Natural Baulders 10 Ea __ $5000.00 §50,000.00
Sublofal §98,000
DIV 06 ROUGH CARPENTAY
Waad Seating Basrds
{pe Boards far Seat Vialls 1 LF. $§300.60 $33.300.00
Sublotal $33300
DIV 10 SPECIALTIES
Custam Site Fumiture
10.01 Swing Benchesviith Shade Struclure 1 Allow $60000,00 $£0.000.00 (4) benches @ +/- 315000 ea.
Sudiape! 360,000
DIV 28 ELECTRICAL
Exteifor Lighting
26.01 String Lighting 500 LF. $35.00 §17.500.00
26,07 Omamental 14°Pale Lights 3 Ea $7.000.00 §11,000,00
26.03 Pedestrian Pole Lights 20 Es,  $5000.00 $100000.00
Sublatal $133,500
DIV 31 EARTHWORK
Site Clearing
3101 Selective low-growth vegatation, stump remaval & limbiag 1 L3 $5000.00 45000.00
31.02 Fine Grading & Sita Preparalion 1 LS. $5000.00 $s000.00
Sublatal $10,000
0IV 32 EXTERIGR IMPROVEMENTS
Splathpad Feature
Waler Feature 1 Allaw  $350,000.00 $350.000.00 Fush mounted pup ety exchafing pavement cosis
Subiatal $350,000
Pedestrian Paving
Briek Unit Paver, Pedestrian Crade, Runaing Bend 300 SF $25.00 §7500.00 Msin Smast sidewalk scoents
Unit Paver, P rian Grade 1832 &F §75.00 $126300.00 124 Multi use trail, 141" fool segment
Hatural i fan Grads 6235 SE $75.00 $162,625.00 Remalning hardscape sreas
Sublata) §602.025
Sita Fumiture
Mavshle Calé Sealing - Set of (4) Chairs, Table, Umbrells & Ea §7,500.00 §45.000.00
Mavahle Seating - Adirondack Choir 6 2 $700.00 $4200.00
Movable Seating - Ottontan 2z Ea §425.00 585000
€' Ipe and Steel 8acked Bench 4 B §2.565.00 §10,260.00
Litter # Recycling Aeceptacles 4 Ea  $7000.00 $3.000.00
Bike Racks [ Ea. $600.00 4$6000.00
Lit BoFard 5 &, $1,500,00 $7500.00
Artislic Bollard 5 Ea. 5200000 §10000.00
Larqe Plant Pats 3 Ea $500.00 $1500.00
Subtotal $93310
signa
Primary Park 1D, dauble-sided 1 Ea  $5500.00 $5500.00
Dawntawn Waylinding Kiosk 1 Ea.  §5500.00 §5500.00
Wayfinding & Requlatory Signage, double-sided 1 Afow  35000,00 $5000,00
Padestrizn Ligh! Pole Banners & Ea. $25.00 S1s0.00
Subiatal $16,150
Publla Art
Bublic A1l Allgwance - Murals, Seulplures, ele. 1 Allaw __550,000.00 $50,000.00
Subtanl $50,000
lrigatlon System
lirigalian system and eonirels 1 LS. §70.000.00 §20000.00
Subiotal $20,000
Planting
Planting Sails
Scorify & 1l subgrada 1878 SF §0.0 $1575.80
Turfgrass Sails n cyY §60.00 $1.980,00 4 Depth
Tiee Pit Soda 2 cY $80.00 $160.00 3CYpermez
Planting Sails 19 cY $e0.00 §15440.00 18" Deplh
Stormwaler Basin Safls a4 ey S80.00 $6,720.00 18" Depik, highes sand content. Basins focated nlsige
lanti as botween sidewalls and splashpsd
Subtotal 525878
Plants
Turf & Grasses
Saed 2708 SF. $0,56 §1516.48
Subtolal $1.516
Contalnerized /B8 Plants
Lasge Deciduous Tree 4" cal, 20 fa §1,200.00 $24000.00
Shiuhs, P i and Mulch -0 1 410 SF. §35.00 $121450.00
Shrubs, Perennialy, Groundeavers, and Mulch - Stormwater Basin 1507 &F. §35.00 §52,745.00 Basins focated It largz planting areas betaeen skdawalts
and splishpsd
Sublotal £198,195
Planiing Accessaries
Refilsble water bags 20 Ea, $50.00 §1.0a0.00
Subtotal $1,000
DIV 33 UTIUTIES
Subsurface Drainage
Trench dians and undetground piping 1 Allaw__$20.000.00 $20000,00 Splashped aea
Subratal i 620,000
TOTAL PARK COST 51,796,077
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i Petal Park is designed with three
Splash Pad principles in mind: Flexihility,
Memorability, & Playfulness

Passive Lawn

culptural Sealing

A
>

=
\\ Food Truck Zone ||
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Petal Park

A new public park at the corner of Main Street and
East Gay Street could become the premier public
space in Lancaster County as well as a signature,
family-friendly anchor for Downtown. This place,
called Petal Park, would be a high-visibility
project that would become a major destination
capable of attracting people of all ages, incomes,
and abilities to Downtown Lancaster. Petal Park
would also take advantage of Downtown's “100%
Corner” and serve as a catalyst for much-needed
investment in adjacent properties, including the
Old Bank of Lancaster Building and the Springs
Black.

Petal Park would feature numerous high-quality
amenities, including:

« acrescent-shaped splash pad with flush-
mounted pop-jets (which would enable the
space to act as a plaza when not in operation)

= g passive lawn for picnicking and seating
during special events, such as outdoor
concerts and movies

« Movable cafe seating, including tables, chairs,
and umbrellas
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On-street parking that would be utilized as
a faad truck zone during festivals and other
special events

Shade-giving trees and signature vegetation,
including native grasses and red rose bushes

Stormwater gardens wrapped by low walls
that provide seating

A wide variety of public art, including murals,
sculptures, and banners.

Recommendations

Design and build the park. The City should
acquire the property, explore funding
opportunities, develop a detailed site plan,
and construct the park.

Prepare an operations and maintenance plan
for the park. The City should be prepared to
maintain the park, with special attention paid
to the splash pad.

Develop a plan for park programming,
public art, and special events. As a signature
Downtown space, Petal Park should include a
wide array of activities, events, and displays.

Market and promote the park. Ensure Petal
Park is featured prominently in local and
external marketing for Downtown.

Springs Block




Publiciinvestmentiin Petal
Park will incentivize private

investment in adjacent
buildings, such as'the Springs:
Block ‘
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Petal Park
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